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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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Corporate Information
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Management'’s Statement
BEEERE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2015/16 was a critical year and full of challenges for the Group.
During the year, the Group continued to focus provision of general
hospital services and pharmaceutical products in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Our ability to respond to policy
changes and market competition was tested, the Group’s revenue
for the year was approximately HK$1,574.607 million (2015:
approximately HK$1,780.309 million), representing approximately
a decrease of 11.55% as compared with 2015. The operating
loss was approximately HK$21.690 million (2015: approximately
HK$759.875 million). Net loss attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$43.372 million (2015:
approximately HK$505.581 million), representing a decrease in
the loss attributable to owners of the Company as compared to
the same period of last year. The decrease was mainly due to no

impairment loss on goodwill for the year ended 31 March 2016.

OPERATION REVIEW

General hospital services

The Group operates three general hospitals in Chongqing,
Jiaxing and Zhuhai and continues to allocate resources to look
for business opportunities to expand the hospital services. The
segmental revenue for the year was approximately HK$252.844
million (2015: approximately HK$214.040 million), representing an

increase of approximately 18.13% as compared with 2015.
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Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain business

Our subsidiary Wanjia engages in the wholesale and distribution
of a broad range of pharmaceutical products to hospitals,
clinics and pharmacies in the Fujian Province, the PRC, as well
as operates a chain of retail pharmacies in the province under
the brand name the “Huihao Sihai”. The pharmaceutical retail
chain operation has maintained the leading position in both retail
drug store numbers and comprehensive competitiveness within
Fujian Province. Wanjia continues to allocate resources to look for
business opportunities to expand its pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and retail chain businesses. The segmental revenue
for the year was approximately HK$1,321.763 million (2015:
approximately HK$1,566.269 million), representing a decrease of

approximately 15.61% as compared with last year.

Although the regulatory changes will pose challenges to the
operating environment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical
industry, the demand for healthcare services and pharmaceutical
products sustains a robust growth fuelled by various favorable
factors, such as the extended medical insurance coverage into the
different diseases for different segments of the population across
the country, the rise in per capita funding standards for medical
insurance, the acceleration in urbanisation and the aging of

China’s population.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would
like to thank for the kind support from our customers, suppliers,
business partners. Also, | would like to offer my highest gratitude
to thank for to our shareholders for their devotion and to our
employees across all business segments for their loyalty and

contributions made during the year.

Jiang Tao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2016 is as follows:

o Total revenue was approximately HK$1,574.607 million
(2015: approximately HK$1,780.309 million), representing
a decrease of approximately 11.55% as compared with last
year. The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to
the decline in sales from the pharmaceutical wholesales and
distribution segment due to the implementation of the New
GSP in 2015.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$279.380 million (2015:
approximately HK$277.728 million), with the gross profit

margin maintained at a similar level as 2015.

o The operating loss was approximately HK$21.690 million
(2015: approximately HK$759.875 million). Net loss
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$43.372 million (2015: approximately HK$505.581
million), representing a decrease in the loss attributable to
owners of the Company as compared with last year. The
decrease was mainly due to no impairment loss on goodwill
for the year ended 31 March 2016.

o The directors of the Company do not recommend the

payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2016 (2015: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC.

Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$1,574.607
million (2015: approximately HK$1,780.309 million) for the year
ended 31 March 2016, a decrease of approximately 11.55% as
compared with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the reduction in sales of pharmaceutical business. The
gross profit margin of the Group was approximately 17.74%,
(2015: approximately 15.60%), The increase was attributable
to the growth in general hospital services among the operating

segments.

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group operated three
general hospitals in Chongqing, Jiaxing and Zhuhai, respectively
principally engaged in the provision of general hospital services,
including but not limited to medical wards, surgical wards,
cosmetic surgery, dermatology and medical checkup and
examination. The management envisaged more diversified hospital
services being readily available to satisfy various needs of the
public in the next few years, from the common illness treatments
to the treatments of special and difficult diseases. Therefore, the
Group will continue to allocate resources to develop such services
either from our existing hospitals or through collaboration with
strategic partners. The revenue generated from general hospital
services amounted to approximately HK$252.844 million (2015:
approximately HK$214.040 million), representing a significant

increase of approximately 18.13% as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses

The Group engages in the wholesale, distribution of a board range
of pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and pharmacies
in the Fujian Province, the PRC, through its subsidiary — Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Wanjia Group”). The Group's
pharmaceutical retail chain operation has maintained the leading
position in both retail drug store numbers and comprehensive
competitiveness within the Fujian Province, as ranked by
independent associations in the PRC. The Group continues to
allocate resources and to look for business opportunities to
expand the pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and retail
chain businesses. Revenue generated from pharmaceutical
wholesales, distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business
amounted to approximately HK$1,321.763 million (2015:
approximately HK$1,566.269 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 15.61% as compared with last year and accounted
for approximately 83.94% of the Group’s revenue for the year
ended 31 March 2016. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the reduction in sales to distributor customers due to the
more stringent regulations as a result of the promulgation and

implementation of the New GSP.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including rental income, bank interest
income, loan interest income and sundry income amounted to
approximately HK$7.593 million (2015: approximately HK$9.502
million) for the year ended 31 March 2016, which remained at

similar level as compared with last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1)
salaries and wages of sales and marketing personnel, (2) rental
expenses and (3) transportation expenses. For the year ended
31 March 2016, selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$152.022 million (2015: approximately
HK$141.745 million), representing an increase of approximately
7.25% as compared with last year. The increase in selling
and distribution expenses was due to the increase of salaries,

promotional expenses and rental expenses during the year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$158.443 million (2015:
approximately HK$120.667 million), representing an increase of
approximately 31.31% as compared with last year. The increment
was due to the increase of staff costs and other staff share-based

payment expenses.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$19.464 million (2015: approximately
HK$11.520 million), representing an increase of approximately
68.96% as compared with last year. The increase was mainly due

to the interest for the new convertible note issued during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a net loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$43.372 million (2015: net loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$505.581 million), representing a decrease in the loss
attributable to owners of the Company as compared with
last year. The decrease in loss was mainly attributable to no
impairment loss on goodwill for the year ended 31 March 2016

recognised.

In August 2014, the Fujian Food and Drug Administration® (&
EEEREREEEER) announced the 10 companies which
are permitted to conduct the business in the distribution to
public hospitals and public healthcare institutions after 2016. The
operating subsidiary of Wanjia Group, namely ({82 & @M EHF
ZZEHPRA T ) Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited® is on the list. Notwithstanding recognition as a
qualified participant in the distribution industry is encouraging,
the effect of the implementation of the New GSP and any
future policy development on the hospital distribution business
of the Group remains uncertain. Having taken into account the
financial performance as of June 2014, the Board of Wanjia
Group reviewed again the potential effects of the New GSP on
the distribution business in late July 2014 and prudently lowered
the forecasted performance in sales to distributor customers.
As a result the impairment loss on the goodwill was triggered.
The carrying amount of goodwill was tested for impairment as
at 30 June 2014. The impairment test compared the discounted
cash flow of the cash-generating units (CGUs) with the carrying
amounts of the CGUs. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs
were significantly less than the carrying value of the goodwill,
therefore, an impairment loss on the goodwill of approximately

HK$785.169 million was made in last-year.

* English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

2016 is the inaugurated year for the implementation of
China’s “Thirteenth Five-Year Plan”. In next 5 years, the
Chinese Government will promulgate a series of measures to
improve public medical health and increase investments to
facilitate healthcare industry development, so as to achieve the
“Healthy China” objective by 2020. With this environment, the
management envisages the emerging development potential of
private hospitals. The latest data from the National Health and
Family Planning Commission of the People’'s Public of China
has revealed that the number of private hospitals has surpassed
public hospitals and in the aspects of specialized and high-end
medical services, the former has comparatively better competitive
advantages. In terms of medical payment, investments in
commercial medical insurance are also increasing. The national
insurance system has also raised its payments for public medical
spending. In terms of man-time, the management notices that
multi-locations practice by medical practitioners has entered
into the implementation stage from policy level. Currently, at
least thirty percent of the practitioners are practicing in private
hospitals. We foresee that this percentage will continue to rise,
provide continuous increase in the number of medical technical

service staff for the development of private hospitals.

It is under this context that the management has full confidence
about our future development. We will continue to improve the
service standard and technology in existing hospitals and provide
medical services that are required by local communities according
to market demand. We realize that with the government’s
strengthening on the monitoring of medical market and the
increasing requirements by the public for quality services, we
must vigorously promote regulated operation, improve the
governance standard in hospitals and highlight the differential
operation philosophy and market strategy. At the same time,
we are still seeking cooperation opportunities, which include
hospital personnel training, distinguishing specialized services and

advanced medical technology to name a few.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

We are already fully prepared for the future market development.
On the basis of strengthening hospital management, we will cut
down operating costs, implement innovative brand marketing
and promotion activities, adopt people-oriented principle and
elevate the quality and branding of the Group’s medical services.
However, as the domestic economy is at its transitional stage
currently, the supply structure reform will sure bring challenges
to the healthcare industry. The management is soberly aware of
this issue and is prepared for it. Hence, seeking and implementing
suitable development opportunities will be one of the working
focuses, and seizing opportunities, optimizing resources and
striving for expansion are the recent directions that Hua Xia
Healthcare is endeavored on.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$249.712 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$88.793 million).

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$713.934 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$732.674 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$325.401 million as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
HK$414.992 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 2.194 as at 31 March 2016 (2015: approximately
1.766).

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio was not
applicable based on outstanding debts (comprising bill payables,
bank borrowings, convertible notes and promissory note) less cash
and cash equivalents over total equity (including all capital and
reserves of the Group) (2015: approximately 58%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no material capital

commitment.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

FINANCING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. All the Group’s financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the
Group's related policies is made under collective but extensive
considerations on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate

risk.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that
the Group’s risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bills payables of approximately
HK$50.395 million and HK$16.308 million respectively. The
Group's pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease payments and
investment properties of approximately HK$6.096 million,
HK$10.623 million and HK$7.199 million, respectively, were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services and
(2) pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain businesses. Financial information in respect of these

operations is presented in Note 5.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2016, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$17.978 million (2015:
approximately HK$17.601 million) divided into 1,699,249,944
ordinary shares and 98,500,000 non-voting convertible preference
shares (2015: 1,661,589,944 ordinary shares and 98,500,000
non-voting convertible preference shares) of HK$0.01 (2015:
HK$0.01) each.

Rights issue

On 22 June 2015, the Company and the underwriter entered
into an underwriting agreement. The Company proposes to
raise not less than approximately HK$240 million but not more
than approximately HK$260 million, before expenses, by way of
the Rights Issue of not less than 334,633,988 rights shares but
not more than approximately 360,908,387 rights shares to the
qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.72 per
rights share on the basis of one (1) rights share for every five (5)
shares held on the record date. On 8 July 2015, the Underwriter
and the Company mutually agreed to terminate the Underwriting
Agreement due to the view of significant change in market

conditions and the sentiment of the investors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 2,134 (2015: 1,936) full
time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
table:

EIEES RO

& 8 B 8l B 36
R-ZEB-R"F=ZR=+—H FKKEEEE2,134
Z(ZE—HF:1,936R)2HBEE (BFE
E) O FBERTXR:

Number of Staff

Location = BEIAE
Hong Kong BB 17
PRC (including cities of Chonggqing, Jiaxing, TR (BEEEm ZEMm KEH- 2,117

Zhuhai, Shanghai and the Fujian Province) EEREER)
For the year ended 31 March 2016, staff costs (including
directors emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$173.326
million (2015: approximately HK$119.076 million). The Group
remunerates its employees based on individual performance and
qualification. Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits
include the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic
insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury
insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in the
PRC. The Group also adopted employee share option schemes
to provide eligible employees a performance incentive for
continuous and improved services with the Group and to enhance
their contributions to increase profits by encouraging capital

accommodation and share ownership.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERRETH

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

PRC government policy

In August 2014, Fujian Food and Drug Administration” ({824
EREREEBEER) announced a new Good Supply Practice
(“New GSP”) that only qualified companies are permitted to
conduct the business in the distribution to public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions after 2016, there is no assurance
that the PRC government will not continue to pursue policies in

the future to towards the industry.

Operational risks

Under the new GSP, although one of the subsidiaries, namely
(REEAREMMBIFEEBMRAE) Fujian Province Funzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited” is on the list, it is unable to
cater for all the market shares on distribution sale business which
are covered by those previous distributor customers due to the

constraint of the existing direct sale distribution facilities of the

group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Wanjia Group

On 12 May 2015, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (“Hui Hao (HK)"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Wanjia Group, Fujian Province
Fuzhou City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* (BB B @M H 2
BEBRAA)
Hui Hao (HK) and Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology Limited* (&
MIZZBERFHRQT) ("Ren An”) entered into the Joint

Venture Agreement, pursuant to which Ren An agreed to make

("Fuzhou Huihao”), a wholly owned subsidiary of

a capital contribution of approximately RMB26 million to the
registered capital and the capital reserve of Fuzhou Huihao. As a
result, the equity interest of Hui Hao (HK) in Fuzhou Huihao was
diluted from 100% to 75% and Fuzhou Huihao held as to 75%
by Hui Hao (HK) and as to 25% by Ren An. Other than this, the
Wanjia Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals

of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year.

On 14 May 2015, the Wanjia Group entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the Wanjia
Group has conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing
Agent, on a best efforts basis, the Convertible Notes with principal
amounts aggregating up to HK$84,292,000 to the Placees at the
initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per Conversion Share (“the
Placing”). Based on the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.65 per
Conversion Share, a total of 129,680,000 Conversion Shares
will be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the Convertible Notes in full. The Placing was
completed on 1 June 2015. Up to 31 March 2016, there was no

Convertible Notes converted into the Conversion Shares.

As at 31 March 2016, the total issued share capital of the
Wanjia Group was approximately HK$6.484 million representing
648,405,300 ordinary shares (2015: 648,405,300 ordinary shares).

¥ English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EEREREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 60, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master’s degrees in
audiology and in special education from Lamar University of Texas
in the United States. He served as senior management in several
enterprises in the United States, Canada and the PRC with over
18 years of experience in senior management, consultancy and
investment in the PRC, Hong Kong, Canada and the United States.
Dr. Jiang has also established six enterprises in the PRC with
Canadian capital. He is currently the life time visiting Professor of
the Kunming Normal University, and formerly Assistant Professor
of Dalhousie University of Canada, Sichuan University, and Sun
Yatsen Medical University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive
director and Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 3 January
2007 and 26 March 2010 respectively. Dr. Jiang was appointed as
a Chief Executive Officer on 20 April 2015.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 48, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 20 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.

Dr. Huang Jiaqing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 65, has over 30 years
of professional experience in the PRC’'s medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as hospital doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang's distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

Mr. Yung Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”), aged 27, obtained his master
degree of science in business majoring in accounting from the
University of Maryland, College Park in the United States. Mr. KC
Yung has entered into a service contract with the Company dated
20 April 2015 for a term of 3 years commencing from the date
of the service contract. Mr. Yung was appointed as the executive
director and authorised representative of the Company with
effective from 20 April 2015.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong"”), aged 63, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 30 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

Mr. Tang Xun (“Mr. Tang”), age 35, holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Japanese from the Beijing International Studies University in
2004, and thereafter a Master’s degree in political economics from
Graduate School of Peking University as an on-job postgraduate
student in 2012.Mr. Tang Xun has over three years of experience
in private equity investment, and is currently an executive director
of Beijing Hosen Investment Management, LLP. Mr. Tang was
appointed as the non-executive director of the Company with
effective from 10 March 2015.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

EEREREEAEHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“Ms. Wong"), aged 52, has over 25
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioner and the Certified Tax Advisor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in economics
from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the
managing director of a private company providing consulting and
management services, as well as the chief financial officer of a
local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong is also
currently an independent non-executive director and a member
of the remuneration committee and the chairlady of the audit
committee of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited and Phoenitron
Holdings Limited which both companies listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent

non-executive director of the Company on 1 November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 79, is a professor in
Health Economics and has a Master degree in Science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (“Prof. Lu”), aged 78, is a neurologist and
has over 50 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu was
formerly the chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology
in Shanghai Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese
Association of Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai
association of Neurology in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu
also has an international membership with New York Academy of
Sciences. Prof. Lu was appointed as an independent non-executive

director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 41, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 20 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE-HEREBHRSE

This is the first environmental, social and governance report
prepared by the Group, which illustrates the Group’s performance
in the environmental, social and governance matters.

Environmental protection

General hospital services

The Group has adopted the green hospital development policy and
implemented low carbon strategies in all aspects of operations in
compliance with the requirements by the government.

Pharmaceutical wholesales, distribution and retail chain
business

The Group is committed to environmental protection and
energy conservation. In the course of investment, construction
and operation, the Group has consistently carried out the
operation objective of “Benefiting the society and the populace”
and focused on sustainable development. With speediness,
reliability, precision and safety as its objective, the Group
possesses advanced logistics equipment, warehousing facility
and modernised ERP system, and is equipped with electronic
tag, RF picking, tray storage and other modern equipment for its
operation. The Group also introduced advanced IT programme
management and technical support of modern information
network and strived to facilitate paperless office and old stuff
reuse.

Relationship with suppliers

While focusing on its self-development, the Group is also in
pursuit of mutual advancement with its business partners.
With the further implementation of new industrial policies, the
cooperation between each party of the pharmaceutical supply
chain is becoming increasingly closer. Interest-binding promotes
the formation of strategic cooperation and alliance. We firmly
believe that partners are the most reliable resources of the Group
and that the development of the Group cannot be separated from
that of its partners.

With career platform as its foundation and in the principle of
sincere cooperation and mutual benefits, the Group gained
the recognition and favour of suppliers with its quality
merchandise and good services. It aims at realizing common value
enhancement, common interests and a win-win situation of the
parties.

The Group established a long-term stable partnership with
large and medium pharmaceutical manufacturers and suppliers
in provinces and cities nationwide, with tens of thousands of
cooperative varieties.
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Patient care

The Group has adopted the policy of the Patient First and Care
with Heart to ensure the highest quality of medical services
protected with the strictest safety standards. This policy has
been built into the service procedures applying to all patients
from the first admission to the long term care. Each step during
the process has to ensure the patient receives care as medically
needed to maximize the greatest benefits as deemed appropriate.
The patient care services require our professionals and facilities
to adhere to all the requirements and standards to reflect the
value and spirits that we believe in. In addition, we shall utilize all
assessments to monitor the progress of the care and to evaluate
the outcomes that we have provided to the patient.

Customer service

The Group pays high attention to customer service quality and
standard. The Group always takes “Provide customers with
professional services, increase social wealth, facilitate common
development among corporation partners and us under equitable
relationship” as values to promote its business development. We
are customer-oriented, fully observe and study customer needs,
and constantly adjust products and business models to improve
service quality. The entities under the Group have established a
comprehensive customer management system. By increasing the
frequency of visits to customers and strengthening communication
with customers, feedback from customers can be obtained in a
timely fashion, thereby achieving higher standard of customer
services.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group fully complies with all laws and regulations and
regularly monitors and gathers information about changes in
laws, rules and regulations relevant to the Group's businesses to
ensure the Group's observance of those applicable laws, rules and
regulations, especially those which may have material impact on
the Group.

The Group has been actively promoting policies for the prevention
of legal risks, and the engagement of legal advisors and
deepening the building of a system for in-house legal workflow
is to consolidate its capability of compliance and corporate
governance. The Group complies with the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Pharmaceutical Administration Law of the
People’s Republic of China, and Quality Administration Practice for
Pharmaceutical Operation to operate its businesses.

Staff

It has always been the Group's firm belief that staff is the most
valuable resources and wealth of enterprise development. We
respect and protect the interest of every staff, develop a good
working environment for staff growth, adhere to our belief in
“People-oriented, provide an equitable and open environment
for talents to compete”, provide staff with a sound development
channel with ample training, care about staff’s livelihood and
support them to achieve their self-values. We strictly comply
with the laws and regulations of Labour Contract Law, advocate
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staff equality and diversity, implement market competitive
remuneration and benefit system, concern about staff's
occupational health and safety, and established a comprehensive
labour relationship management system. Under the objectives of
open communication, norm transparency and win-win mutual
benefits, we established a mutual-reliance relationship with
staff to jointly promote the enterprise’s continuous and health
development.

Policy on remuneration and benefit

As of 31 March 2016, the Company and its subsidiaries employed
a total of 2,134 employees. The Group has established a
comprehensive management system of remuneration, motivation
and performance appraisal. Salary is commensurate with
employees’ position value, competence and performance and with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Staff performance
is assessed in an appropriate manner and the outcome of which
will be reflected in remuneration and promotion. The Group
holds the health and well-being of its employees in high regard
by providing them with benefits in kind such as provident fund,
medical insurance, social pension insurance, education allowances
and training programmes.

Development and training

The Group puts a strong emphasis on the recruitment and
nurturing of talents. During 2016, the Group stepped up the
recruitment of management personnel and professionals in the
logistics sector based on its development strategies and business
development requirements, in a bid to strengthen its management
and professional teams and optimise its staff mix. The Group also
places a strong emphasis on the training and appointment of
internal staff, whereby crucial employees who deliver outstanding
performance at work and show potential for development are
promoted to key positions of the Group.

The Group places a strong emphasis on staff training, and
encourages staff to enhance their abilities through continuous
training by the participation in various development and training
programmes to be provided by the Group on a yearly basis, so
as to build a high-calibre team of management personnel and
professionals compatible with the Group’s business development.

The Group has compiled a staff manual and distributed to its
staff. The staff manual sets out the development history, structure,
future planning and corporate culture of the Group as well as the
conduct, rights and benefits of the staff.

Safety and health

The Group is always committed to providing a safe, efficient
and comfortable workplace for its staff. Through rational
arrangements, training and guidelines as well as the provision
of physical check-ups and education on occupational health, the
Group strives to ensure good health of its staff and provide a
good working environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the key elements in creating shareholders’ value.
The Company is also committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance that can properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability of the Company. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”) (effective from 1
April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market ("GEM")
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1, separation
of roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code
provision A.2.1. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong resigned on 20 April 2015
as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Company has
met all the code provisions in the CG Code during the year ended
31 March 2016.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a set of code for the required standard
of dealings in securities by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of directors of the Company and the directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard with
respect to the securities dealings of the Company and there was
no event of non-compliance during the period from 1 April 2015
to 31 March 2016.

THE BOARD

The Board assumes overall responsibilities for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its business by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with attention
particularly paid to the financial performance of the Company.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.
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There is a clear division of the responsibilities of the Board and the
management. The Board delegated its responsibilities to directors
and senior management to deal with day-to-day operations and
review those arrangements on a periodic basis.

Management has to report back to the Board and obtain prior
approval before making decisions for key matters or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference which are disclosed on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange Website.

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under
the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

Board Composition and Attendance Records of
Directors

The Board currently composes of four executive directors, two
non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. During the year, seven full board meetings were held and
attendance (either in person or through other electronic means
of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the
Board together with the meetings of the audit, remuneration and
nomination committee during the year ended 31 March 2016 and
annual general meeting held in 2015 are set out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY SEHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination 2015
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM/EGM
—Z-1%
BREAFEXE/
Name of directors EENS EEg ERERY FHZERS REZEE BRABHIKE
Executive directors BTEE
Dr. Jiang Tao BEEL 8/10 N/A T A N/A T A 1/1 212
Mr. Zheng Gang 5 10/10 N/A T A 212 N/A T A 212
Dr. Huang Jiaging BENEELE 6/10 N/A T3 A N/A T3 A N/A T3 A 212
Mr. Yung Ka Chun? FRELLE? 8/10 N/A 78 N/A 78 N/A RE A 212
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong’ FEZEE 0/0 N/A 748 N/A 748 0/0 0/0
Non-executive directors FBTES
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James IHRREBE 6/10 N/A T A N/A T3 A N/A T A 212
Mr. Tang Xun? btk 6/10 N/A T A N/A T A N/A T A 212
Independent non- BIUFARTEE
executive directors
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne BEREut 8/10 4/4 212 1/1 212
Prof. Hu Shanlian HEBHR 8/10 4/4 22 11 22
Prof. Lu Chuanzhen BEEHR 8/10 4/4 212 11 212
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Notes:
1. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong resigned on 20 April 2015.
2. Mr. Yung Ka Chun was appointed on 20 April 2015.

3. Mr. Tang Xun was appointed on 10 March 2015.

“The list of the Directors and their Role and Function” has
been maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The directors’ biographies and the relationship among
the board members, if any, are disclosed under the “Directors’ and
Senior Management’s Profiles” on pages 20 to 23 of this annual
report.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each director brings to bear in its deliberations,
the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively oversee
the business of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors, with diversified expertise, skills and experience, play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that
the Board maintains high standards of corporate governance.
The Board had received from each independent non-executive
director a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of independent non-executive
directors up to the date of this report is in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

On a regular basis, senior management provides the directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect. All directors are kept informed of and duly
briefed of major changes and information that may affect the
Group's business in a timely manner.

Every Board member is entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The company secretary
continuously updates all directors on the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate
governance practice.
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Training and Continuous Development for Directors
Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. For directors to keep abreast
of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Company had provided trainings for directors in the form
of seminar and reading materials. The Company has devised a
training record to assist the directors to record the training they
have undertaken. Also, the completed records are received from
each of the directors as confirmation.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether
any changes.

DIRECTORS

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific
term and subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors who have been longest in office since their last election
or re-election are also subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-
election.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person to discuss and formulate
overall strategic direction and objectives and also approve annual,
interim and quarterly results as well as other significant matters of
the Company. Execution of daily operational matters is delegated
to management.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing notice
and agenda for the meetings, and ensures that the Company
complied with the corporate governance practices and other
compliance matters. Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda
of each meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance. At least 14 days' notice of all regular board meetings
were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular discussion. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each regular board
meeting or committee meeting (or such other period as agreed) to
keep directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.
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All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are recorded in
significant detail for any decision and recommendation made
during the meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to directors or committee members within a reasonable
time after the meetings are held and taken as the true records
of the proceedings of such meetings. All minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any director.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on
disclosure due to regulatory requirements.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by way
of a Board/committee meeting and the interested shareholder or
director shall not vote nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum
present at the relevant meeting. Independent non-executive
director who, and whose associates, have no material interest in
the transaction, should be present at such a board meeting.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference compliance with rules
5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and is disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Audit Committee of the Company is
comprised of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the Audit
Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, four meetings were held.
The main duties of the Audit Committee during the year include:

(@) Reviewing the Group’s audited annual and unaudited interim
and quarterly results and reports and consider any significant
or unusual items before submission to the Board.
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(b) Reviewing the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditors.

(c) Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

(d) Advising on material event or drawing the attention of the

management on related risks.

The external auditors were invited to attend the said meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the audit
and financial reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the

reappointment of external auditors.

Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

On 11 February 2014, the Board resolved to establish a
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee in place
and stead of the previously Nomination Committee, which was
established on 27 March 2012 in compliance with the code
provision. Written terms of reference were disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is comprised of
three independent non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka
Wai, Jeanne, Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and the
Chief Executive Officer Dr. Jiang Tao of the Board. On 20 April
2015, Dr. Jiang Tao is the chairman of the Nomination Committee

and Corporate Governance Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition, including the skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and identify
individuals suitable qualified to become directors and select, or

make recommendations to the Board for directorships.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
2016.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 3
June 2005 with written terms of reference as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee has four
members comprising an executive director of the Company, Mr.
Zheng Gang and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong
Ka Wai, Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the
Remuneration Committee.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
the determination of specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, two meetings were held.
Both meetings were held to consider and approve the increase of
emoluments of an executive director.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2016.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows of
the Group. In preparing the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently.
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RE-HEREBHRSE

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 57 to 59 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training to

update his skills and knowledge.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal Control and Risk Management Systems

The Group's internal control and risk management systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems. In 2015, the
Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed and is satisfied
with the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control and

risk management systems of the Group.

The Board will review the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function

annually.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the fees paid or payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:

REMHZEREUBREREECEEIER
RERFSTESOR 2BV ZBENRER

LRWE
RERN AR 2 ATRECETTORISE
B S DT T 2 e T S o

A ER B 2

ABERRRBEEERHK
FEEzARERREAREERASETSE D
(BXFBEHM)RBLEERNRERMNIE
Ko WER (BAFTR2HR) AEELEERS
RRNER - R-Z-1F BBEKEES.
EXECEHAGEAARE 2 AMEER AR
EERERAGBEMARED

ESEHEFRVERESRE AQAER
R BERBIMFAE T 2 EFE K &5 UK EZ
FERER-

£ B Bl B &
RBE-Z-—AF=A=+-ALEE BF
EERMARE BRI ERRBO AR
NFRBEMZEAMT :

Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEHEE W (T#&ERT)
Audit services EZIRE 1,636
Non-audit services FEZRTE 336

The non-audit services fee was related to the Group’s right issue

placing review.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has not

made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Company's Article of Association is also available on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and
existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.huaxia-healthcare.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group's financial
information and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, if
they have any enquires about their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
for the year.

RE-HEREBHRE

BREERE
REE-ZE-—R"EZA=1+—-HLEEE XA
AEAHHEASERARELEMES KA
AR ZEAMERMBIATERD MU KRR
Fréuk 38 -

HERRREERE

ESEME EUMERKEAEE &R
BYRRREBREEFHRERERE  LINRF
THASERERARKE HADF 2 ER
BERRAREERRNRESBEZREER

RN B A # it www.huaxia-healthcare.com
EAERRRBREEBE2TE AEEEH
WU PR EFVBEENEEMERNUHAR
B

B Rz 4 F

AR F R RIR B AR B
EORES SR R BTt LERRE N
EAABARRZEH - WENALUEBLZ
FERESRRNEH M REMAEM
AEEREZ SN TUBERLTZREE
FRTE-

BRAELREZMBERBRSRIBEAIZER L
MRABRERR REERBRERRAESE
REREE PR A QT

BREAQXFAZRAAAR ESSTRERBE
BREAMRREINAS REAMEZERA
HHEBETORADAMERS (MERART
BRRERRERN) T 22— 2RI REM
BRI AREEAMNESETRAAWERHER
ER ERESSEMRRBAREG UEE
FRERBIBZEFAEE MAEBKSER
E2EREMMERRNET

BEXH
AAAZBEXMHRFALBETED -

EEERBEEEAGR AT 2015/2016 F IR

35



36

Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

The directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services, pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2016 are set out in

the consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 63.

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 16 April 2015, the Company granted a total of 100,000,000
share options to directors and employees of the Group at the
subscription of HK$0.68 per share respectively with a 3 year
exercise period each commencing 18 April 2015, 18 April 2016
and 18 April 2017 respectively.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity respectively.

The Company did not have any distributable reserves as at 31
March 2016 (2015: approximately HK$Nil million). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distribution or dividend the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, dividends shall be distributed out of the retained
profits or other reserves, including the share premium account, of

the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group did not further invest in investment property during
the year. Details of the movements in investment property of the
Group during the year are set out in note 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:
Dr. Jiang Tao
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 20 April 2015)
Mr. Zheng Gang
Dr. Huang Jiaging
Mr. Yung Ka Chun (appointed on 20 April 2015)

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 20 April 2015)

Non-executive director:
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James
Mr. Tang Xun (appointed on 10 March 2015)

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen
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In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Zheng Gang, the executive director of the
Company and Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming general meeting.

BEENOREEAEBEABHNAERE20
BRE-BEER AR TMA LT ZEISHE
DRIER G E B RERMFEI0OR3T -

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 20 to 23 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board had signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong resigned on 20 April 2015.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as chief executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 20 April 2015 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Yung Ka Chun has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 20 April 2015 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James, has been appointed as the
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.
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Mr. Tang Xun, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director by way of a contract with the company for a
period of one year commencing from 20 March 2015 which will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the

other party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a)

Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standards of dealings by directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares of the Company:
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Approximate

percentage

Number of the total

Name of Director Nature of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT

Bin@Hz

EENR gEang Bin&E 4§13 BHEostt
Mr. Yung Ka Chun Corporate interest (Note) 418,491,516 Long 24.63%
FEBEE NERER (M) 418,491,516 L5} 24.63%
Personal interest (Note) 2,640,000 Long 0.16%

BARER () 2,640,000 i) 0.16%

Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 6,044,000 Long 0.36%
R4 5t 4 (PN 6,044,000 e 0.36%
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Approximate

percentage

Number of the total

Name of Director Nature of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT

L3vE-t

EEkR EaH EinE B B gihask
Dr. Jiang Tao Personal interest 5,740,000 Long 0.34%
BEEt (EPN 35 5,740,000 Ha 0.34%
Dr. Huang Jiaging Personal interest 3,800,000 Long 0.22%
EMEELE PN £ 3,800,000 Hr 0.22%
Note:  These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings MizE: WEROGDERBIBERER

Limited (“Easeglory”), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited liability,
the entire issued share capital of which is directly
owned by Mr. Yung Ka Chun. By virtue of the SFO,
Mr. Yung Ka Chun is deemed to have interest of
98,500,000 convertible preference shares held by
Easeglory, which represented approximately 5.80%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Together
with the preference shares held by Easeglory, Mr.
Yung Ka Chun is deemed to have approximately
30.43% of the total issued ordinary share of the
Company.
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(ii)
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Interests in the issued share capital of the Company’s (i) RAEARGHBELZEZ EZFITRAZ
associated corporation: B

Approximate
percentage of
shareholdings
in the associated
Name of associated Capacity/ Number of corporation’s issued
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest shares  Position share capital
{54 B
EEAZERT
¥ 43
£ 3.1 HEEEEE L Vg F-1:3 BRir®E B #inask
Mr. Yung Ka Chun Wanjia Group (Note 1) Corporate interest (Note 2) 24,192,100  Llong 3.73%
FRBEE BEEE (M) NEER (HE2) 24,192,100  #E 3.73%
Note 1: Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited held the Mzl ZEEEEEEERQIAFER
entire issued share capital of Greatly Wealth Global KRERELBRBEMEILIZE
Group Limited (“Greatly Wealth”), a company RABKRBRREEFTRA
incorporated in the BVI with limited liability, which is A(XKBENz2HEBTR
in turn interested in 411,917,648 shares of Wanjia K MABREEZEE(—B
Group, a company incorporated in the Cayman REAESEHEEMRILZER
Islands with limited liability, of which its shares are AR EROREERAERL
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange ™) =2411,917,6488% B 15 (4
(representing approximately 63.53% of the issued ERBEEECRTREAZY
share capital of Wanjia Group). Therefore, Wanjia 63.53% ) FEEER - E UL
Group is an associated corporation of the Company REZRPEGRAIMS B

for the purposes of the SFO. EEARARRE 2 EHBEE -
Note 2: These shares are held through Easeglory, the entire MizE2 : ZERBNDEBRZBEE M

issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Yung
Ka Chun.
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(i) BRAFERERBRETEETZ

(iff)  Interests in share options under Post-IPO share option

44

scheme: BREREZ
Number of
Exercise share options
Name of Director Exercise period price granted Position
=% 1.4
EEEs TR TEE BERERE At
Mr. Yung Ka Chun 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 3,960,000 Long
17 April 2018
SEELE “E-AFMATNEE 0.68% 7T 3,960,000 #A&
—E-N\FWmA+tHR
Dr. Jiang Tao 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 4,410,000 Long
17 April 2018
BEEL “E-AFMATNEE 0.68% 7T 4,410,000 #FA&
—E-N\F@EA+tA
Mr. Tang Xun 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 3,000,000 Long
17 April 2018
B EE “E-AFMATNEE 0.68% 7T 3,000,000 #&
—E-N\FWmA+tHR
Dr. Huang Jiaging 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 4,200,000 Long
17 April 2018
EMEEL “E-AFMATNEHE 0.68%& 7T 4,200,000 #A&
“E-N\FMA++LtH
Mr. Zheng Gang 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 4,410,000 Long
17 April 2018
152 e “E-AFWMATNEE 0.68% 7T 4,410,000 #A&
—ZE-NFMA++tH
Mr. Wong Yu Man, James 18 April 2015 to HK$0.68 1,000,000 Long
17 April 2018
IHRESLE “E-AFMATNEZE 0.68% 7T 1,000,000 #&

—F-N\FEA+LA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the RENFEBEEN R=ZB-—R"EF=ZA=1T—
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any H BESERAAAETETHAEREREAFT
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or REEMEELIE (EERESFRPEMKRHIE
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation XVE) 2R ARG HEROEEZLESR
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the RHERBEESRPERMIEIS2HREBRAR
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 AREzBERMzE ARSI AR SIRIEA
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock ¥R ETRAES A6E5. 67K ERTHERD
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. AR 2 EAESESAR

(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) EEBRRREMRERBBHZIEER K

in shares and underlying shares -
As at 31 March 2016, other than the interests of a director RIE—RE=ZA=1+-—HA BKREX[E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the ERTETHAERAQAT R EBEE
heading “Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares, Bzl HEROREEE 2ER| —
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its HAEERNRAEESRFTETHRAEZ
associated corporations” above, the interests and short @M UTALTRARQFRD RAERER
positions of persons in the shares and underlying shares DHEETHAREESFRAEHKRAE
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be 3B6MEHARARFEZECMzERR
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as K
follows:
Long positions in shares of the Company: RELABRMBZEER:
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HERT
BEip ez
BRRAE Bin&E g 57 L SN=R" 014
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 516,991,516 Long Beneficial owner 30.42%
ZRERARDF () 516,991,516 He BEREAA 30.42%
MAFZEEXER AT (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.20%
MAREEXARLA (E2) 343,217,539 Ha DA 20.20%
HHELEBER DT (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.20%
MALEEERRQA (MEE2) 343,217,539 Hr DR 20.20%
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Approximate

percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HERT
BipEEZ
BREE Bin&E g 57 L SN=R" 014
New Hope International 343,217,539 Long Beneficial owner 20.20%
(Hong Kong) Limited (Note 2)
FHLER (FB)ERLHF 343,217,539 "R ESERA 20.20%
(FMFEE2)
Mr. Liu Yonghao (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.20%
Bk L% (KMEE2) 343,217,539 HE NS 20.20%
Ms. Liu Chang (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Corporate interest 20.20%
25 &+ (HEE2) 343,217,539 Ha DA 20.20%
Ms. Li Wei (Note 2) 343,217,539 Long Interest of spouse 20.20%
gt (aE2) 343,217,539 "R B (B R 20.20%
Shiny Cherry Limited (Note 3) 418,491,516 Long Interest in controlled 24.62%
corporation
Shiny Cherry Limited (Hf&E3) 418,491,516 L=} sl E s 24.62%
VMS Finance Group Limited 418,491,516 Long Interest in controlled 24.62%
(Note 3) corporation
VMS Finance Group Limited 418,491,516 Sy FriEdlEBRER 24.62%
(HM$5E3)
VMS Holdings Limited (Note 3) 418,491,516 Long Interest in controlled 24.62%
corporation
VMS Holdings Limited ( fftzE3) 418,491,516 e FriE sl s B R 24.62%
MAK Siu Hang Viola 418,491,516 Long Interest in controlled 24.62%
corporation
ZH DB 418,491,516 L3y RSl EEE R 24.62%

Note 1: The issued share capital of Easeglory is 100% beneficially
owned by Mr. Yung Ka Chun, an executive Director
of the Company. The 516,991,516 shares represent (i)
the 418,491,516 ordinary shares beneficially owned by
Easeglory, and (ii) the 98,500,000 convertible preference

shares.
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Note 2: New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited is interested
in 343,217,539 shares of the Company. The issued share
capital of New Hope International (Hong Kong) Limited is
75% beneficially owned by A & EEZEHBR AT which is
in turn 51% held by S HLEEBEHER A A and 49% is held
by ARIEXBHEEFRAA.

Both TFEEEAMRAT and AHIEXBLEEEFRAT
are beneficially held by Mr. Liu Yonghao, Ms. Liu Chang
and Ms. Li Wei in shareholding proportionate among them
as 62.34%, 36.35% and 1.31% respectively. Therefore,
Mr. Liu Yonghao, Ms. Liu Chang and Ms. Li Wei are
interested in shares of the Company.

Note 3: Shiny Cherry Limited is wholly owned by VMS Finance
Group Limited, VMS Finance Group Limited is wholly
owned by VMS Holdings Limited and VMS Holdings Limited
is wholly owned by MAK Siu Hang Viola. As such VMS
Finance Group Limited, VMS Holdings Limited and MAK
Siu Hang Viola are deemed to be interested in Shiny Cherry
Limited interests in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.
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MeE2: HHEEBR(EB)ERAARN
343,217,539 A D A RD P EE #E
HoHMALER (FB)ERATAZE
BIIRAHEEAFEEEXERAT
BREAS% MEAAHIZEEE£EAR
ATSHEFEEEEERLITR
HRIEXBREEEARDTAVFTESINE
49% o

FHEEEEERATIRARHEXE
BXEBRATHBKGFEE BB L
TRERLTEZEE HE2ZR
EEDLEDBI562.34% - 36.35% K%
1.31% cH Itk Bk FFE4E Bl KL
TRERLZTINADTRMDFESRE

%E&o

MfzE3 : Shiny Cherry LimitedVMS
Finance Group Limited®&# A& -
VMS Finance Group LimitedfVMS
Holdings LimitedZ® & #4&  MVMS
Holdings Limited B ZE D2 E R ©
A Itk » VMS Finance Group Limited
VMS Holdings Limited 2 25 4> 145 3%
BBERShiny Cherry LimitedfE24 2 7
FEEZER R EERER -

BREXFIEBEEN RZB-—RE=ZA=+—
A EZE5UFAAREAEMAL(EEREAR
BAERITHASRMN) RAQ AR REEER
DHREERER SR B LR FEI36MKTHEN
ARAQARAFECECMzERZRAR-

EEWMRESzERN
BREXTESREIZTHRAERKN HER
REEEzER ] —HHRAREEN RX2T
B UK BENEAESHEEFSH
ZEBIAB+N\B2FZREEMER - &
ERETEBBARDAREMEMEABE
RO REEFMES  MRETRETEZ
ZREAN BAQF HEERASHEEMTHE
RANESREMZH BEES KES
BZEBAIARB T N\RZFLAESEMEf
EAEREZZEREF-
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

As at 31 March 2016, there were 66,591,992 outstanding share
options, of which, were granted pursuant to the Post-IPO share
option schemes adopted on 20 April 2002 and 10 August 2011. A
breakdown setting out the number of outstanding share options,
their respective exercise price and respective exercise period under

the Post-IPO scheme was as follows:

WS B 4 AT &)
RZE-—RE=ZBA=+—-HB &x27TEFH
66,591,997 i RITEBRE  HREBER =
EE_HFMAZ+HAR=ZE——FNA+HE
MzERX AHRBRERBRESERE -BRA
FRBEAMEETHRITEBREHE EX
BTEERTEHRBMNT :

Number of
share options

Categories of grantees Exercise period Exercise price outstanding
MERITEZ

ABAER T TER MERRERE

Directors

=

Mr. Yung Ka Chun 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 3,960,000

FEBERLE “E-AFMATNERE 0.683 7T 3,960,000
—E-NFMA+tH

Dr. Jiang Tao 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 4,410,000

BEEL “E-AFMOATNEBRE 0.683& 7T 4,410,000
—ZE-NFWMA++tH

Mr. Tang Xun 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 3,000,000

A “E-HEFMNA+NEE 0.683& 7T 3,000,000
“E-NF@A+tH

Mr. Zheng Gang 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 4,410,000

SRS 5T 4 “E-AFMATNERE 0.683& 7T 4,410,000

—E-NF@A+tH
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Exercise period
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Exercise price

Number of
share options
outstanding

METEZ
EZRBABR T TEE BEREHA
Dr. Huang Jiaging 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 4,200,000
ENEEE —ZE-AFENA+NRE 0.6878 7T 4,200,000
—E2-N\EMA++tH
Mr. Wong Yu Man, James 18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 1,000,000
THRREE —E-AFENA+NRE 0.6878 T 1,000,000
—E-N\F@A++tH
Employees of the Group 13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016 HK$3.61 459,739
XEEEES —EERFELATZ=RHE 3.618T 459,739
—E-REtA+=H
21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017 HK$2.94 1,042,253
—EE+tF=ZA=+—-HZ 2.9458 7T 1,042,253
—E—+H=H=+H
30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 450,000
“EEAFEAA=THE 0.5078 T 450,000
—E-hAFE=ZAZ=Z+ANH
18 April 2015 to 17 April 2018 HK$0.68 43,660,000
—E-HAFNA+NRE 0.68%8 T 43,660,000
—E2-N\FMA++tH
Total &35t 66,591,992
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Purposes of the Share Option Schemes

The purposes of the Share Option Schemes are to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Group’s businesses, to provide additional incentives to Directors
and employees, etc., and to promote the long term financial
success of the Group by aligning the interests of option holders to

shareholders.

Participants of the Share Option Schemes

Eligible participants of the Share Option Schemes include any
employee or any proposed employee (including an officer or
Director (whether executive or non-executive) or alternate Director

of the Company or any affiliate), etc.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out on
page 224. This summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain connected transactions which are significant are also
disclosed as related party transactions (see Note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the following

transactions are “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” as defined in the GEM Listing Rules and

are required to be disclosed in the annual report of the Company.

A. CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Issue share capital of the company as enlarged by
the Conversion Shares

References are made to (i) the 2014 Announcement dated
4 December 2014 in relation to the possible alteration
of the CPS-Il Terms and possible Conversion of CPS-II
involving an application for a Whitewash Waiver; (ii) the
2015 Announcement dated 15 January 2015 in relation to,
among other things, the connected transaction in relation
to the Conversion of CPS-Il involving an application for a
Whitewash Waiver; (iii) the circular of the Company dated 13
February 2015 (the “Circular”) regarding that the CPS-II has
been fully converted into Conversion Shares on 10 March
2015. The CPS-ll Holders hold an aggregate of 761,709,055
Shares after the Conversion, representing approximately
45.85% in the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the Conversion Shares. The entire issued share
capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited is owned by Marshal
International Investments Limited which is in turn wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong. Mr. Yung Kwok
Leong is deemed to have interest in those 120,960,500
Shares held by Easeglory Holdings Limited.

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, father of Mr. Yung Ka Chun who is
the director and one of the substantial shareholder of the
Company, and is thus a connected person on the part of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

All the conditions precedent of the CPS-IlI Subscription being
fulfilled, the CPS-II Subscription was completed on 10 March
2015. In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
CPS-1l Subscription Agreement, a total of 160,984,141
Second Batch CPSs were allotted and issued to Mr. Yung

Kwok Leong.
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B. CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

()

Rental agreement with Fujian Huihao
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“FHP
Chain”)

Tenancy Agreement 1

On 4 December 2014, Fujian Province Fuzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Fujian
Huihao”),
Company, and FHP Chain entered a new tenancy

an indirectly-owned subsidiary of the

agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 1) for the rental
of (i) Level 1 and Level 4 of the office building located
at No. 8 Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian,
Fujian Province, the PRC (the “Property 1”) with
a gross floor area ("GFA") approximately 1,268
square meter (“sq.m.”); and (ii) Levels 1 to 3 of the
warehouse building located at No. 8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian, the PRC (the
“Property 2") with a GFA of approximately 9,852
sq.m.. The term of the lease is from 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB10,144 per month
for the Property 1 and RMB49,260 per month for the
Property 2 and is renewable upon the signing of a new

rental agreement.

Tenancy Agreement 2

On 4 December 2014,
Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (the “Huihao
Sihai”),
Company, and FHP Chain entered a new tenancy

Fujian Huihao Sihai

an indirectly-owned subsidiary of the

agreement (“Tenancy Agreement 2") for the rental
of (i) Level 3 of the office building located at No.8
Huihao Road, Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian
Province, the PRC (the “Property 3”) with a GFA
of approximately 600 sqg.m.; and (ii) Level 4 of the
warehouse building located on No.8 Huihao Road,
Shangjie Town, Minhou Xian, Fujian Province, the PRC
(the "Property 4") with a GFA of approximately 3,284
sq.m.. The term of the lease is from 1 April 2015 to
31 March 2018 with a rental of RMB4,800 per month
for the Property 3 and RMB16,420 per month for the
Property 4 and is renewable upon the signing of the
new rental agreement.
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FHP Chain was held as to 50% of its issued share
capital by Mr. Weng Jiale who is a cousin of Mr. Yung
Ka Chun (“Mr. Yung”). Mr. Yung is a substantial
shareholder of Hua Xia and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Rule 20.54 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the annual
cap, also the total rental charge paid, for the Group's
total transaction amount with FHP Chain contemplated
under the Tenancy Agreement 1 is RMB712,848
(equivalent to approximately HK$873,239) and
Tenancy Agreement 2 is RMB254,640 (equivalent to
approximately HK$311,934).

Rental agreements entered with Yung Muk
Ying (the mother of Mr. Yung) (Ms. Yung)
Tenancy Agreement 3

On 4 December 2014, Putian Huihao Medicine Co.
Limited" (B2 B HEHFEHEFR A A) ("Putian
Huihao”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy
Agreement 3") with Ms. Yung which for rental of (i)
Level 1 of which is located at No. 1466, 1470, 1476
Xiadian Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District,
Putian City, Fujian Province, China (“Property 5”) with
a GFA of approximately 169.81 sq.m.; and (ii) Level 2
of which is located at No. 1466, 1470, 1476 Xiadian
Road, GongChen Street, Licheng District, Putian City,
Fujian Province, China (“Property 6") with a GFA of
approximately 192.86 sq.m.. The term of the lease is
from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018 with a rental of
RMB3,396.2 per month for Property 5 and RMB1,928.6
per month for Property 6 and is renewable upon the

signing of the new rental agreement.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the annual cap,
also the total rental charge paid, for the Group's total
transaction amount with Ms. Yung contemplated under
the Tenancy agreement 3 is RMB63,897 (equivalent to
approximately HK$78,253).

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company, Pro. Hu Shanlian, Pro. Lu Chuanzhen and
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne have, for the purpose
of Rule 20.37 of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that such continuing connected
transactions, for the reporting period, have been

entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of

the Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no
less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from (as appropriate) independent third parties;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.
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The Company's auditors were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditors have issued
their unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policies of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2016, save for the
exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this

report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in hands of the

public exceeds 25% of the total number of issued shares.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD
Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are

set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statement.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was

in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a discussion
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
can be found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” sections of this
Annual Report. The above sections form part of this Directors’

Report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Jiang Tao
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16 June 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIZBENHE

31/F, Gloucester Tower &b

’}fﬁ' ot OE R AR A G The Landmark IR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 11 Pedder Street FATER
Central B ES
Hong Kong HELTITRE3E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HETEREEAERAFZEER

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to
223, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
A% BE R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2016 and of the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Sze Wai, Basilia
Practising Certificate Number: P05806

Hong Kong, 16 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEaMBRRAE

Asat 31 March 2016 R=ZE—X~"FE=H=+—H

2016 2015
—E—-REF —E-REF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff&E THET FE T
ASSETS =5E
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment M- -BERRE 6 91,772 72,030
Prepaid lease payments FENHEEMRE 7 34,897 30,255
Investment property BREWHE 8 7,199 8,093
Goodwill [EES 9 30,068 31,939
163,936 142,317
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 13 118,574 133,516
Trade and other receivables and ESRHEMERFIER
deposits 7e 14 339,251 497,111
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIT A 15 301 284
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFRITFER 16 6,096 12,970
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEESEEHER 16 249,712 88,793
713,934 732,674
Total assets BEME 877,870 874,991
EQUITY ga
Capital and reserves BER iR
Share capital i 17 17,978 17,601
Reserves ER] 18 163,987 204,209
Equity attributable to owners of EAFIHBAREGES
the Company 181,965 221,810
Non-controlling interests JEIERER 212,381 159,688
Total equity HaHHE 394,346 381,498

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REMBARRE

As at 31 March 2016 R=ZE—ARF=HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M =E F&x FET
LIABILITIES &\
Current liabilities mEBAS
Trade and other payables B REMENRIE 21 271,771 287,349
Bank borrowings IRITEE 22 50,395 121,454
Amounts due to non-controlling PSR IR R 2 R IE
shareholders 23 662 1,147
Tax payables FE {3 18 2,573 5,042
325,401 414,992
Non-current liabilities EREBIAR
Convertible note iR RE 24 83,178 5,432
Promissory note o E 25 74,104 72,712
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 26 841 357
158,123 78,501
Total liabilities AfRHREE 483,524 493,493
Total equity and liabilities RERAaRER 877,870 874,991
Net current assets mENEERE 388,533 317,682
Total assets less current liabilities BERERTHAR 552,469 459,999

The consolidated financial statements were approved and GEMBHREN=-ZBE—R"EANAT+TBHES

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016 SHEREETIZR YR TIHESRKRES:
and signed on its behalf by:

Jiang Tao Yung Ka Chun EE EE
Director Director BE BE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MMM AZE SR BHRR 22— -
consolidated financial statements.

4
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEEkEMEEMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-AF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff=E THET FE T
Revenue [l &= 28 1,574,607 1,780,309
Cost of sales HERSF (1,295,227) (1,502,581)
Gross profit EX 279,380 277,728
Other revenue = 28 7,593 9,502
Other gain, net Hi i FE58 28 2,574 476
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHEH (152,022) (141,745)
Administrative expenses TR X (158,443) (120,667)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEHEESE - (785,169)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BHBARZER 12 (772) =
Loss from operations BEEZEER 29 (21,690) (759,875)
Finance costs B %5 & A 32 (19,464) (11,520)
Loss before taxation BRREER (41,154) (771,395)
Taxation Hi1E 33 (3,942) (10,789)
Loss for the year EXEEBR (45,096) (782,184)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FHEEHM2E
for the year (BHR) WA
Items that may be reclassified HEANSEHso BEEE2
subsequently to profit or loss: HE:
Exchange differences on translating BREBIINSEELZ
foreign operations BE 5 Z=%8 (26,457) 2,131
Total comprehensive loss EEEREGIREHE
for the year (71,553) (780,053)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeEEkEMEEREE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—Z—RF —E-0fF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it 5 FTHT FHE T
Loss for the year attributable to: BiEFEEEGR:
Owners of the Company EAFEEA (43,372) (505,581)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (1,724) (276,603)
(45,096) (782,184)
Total comprehensive loss BhFEEE2EBGIREEH:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company FOFEEA (63,278) (504,393)
Non-controlling interests FERER (8,275) (275,660)
(71,553) (780,053)
Loss per share attributable to FOFHEARGSRER
owners of the Company
— Basic (HK cents per share) —EHAKR (ZREA) 34 (2.42) (28.73)
— Diluted (HK cents per share) — 58 (ZRBW) 34 (2.42) (28.73)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMI 2 MisE AR EREMBERRZ—HD °
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

SATRA AR
Retained
Share-based  Convertible profits/ Non-
Share Share Capital Other Special  Translation payment notes Statutory ~ (accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserve reserve losses) Sub-total interests equity
HRHE
1 F4 THR REdH/

k% RAER REER EH | RHER ERER IR RERH HERE  (RHER) Mt FEERE Raen
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL T T T T T T ThnL TEL TEL T T
(Note (c) (Note (g)) (Note (a)) (Note (d)) (Note (g)) (Note (f)) (Note (b))
(K&(0) (W) () (K&() (We) (K&) (K&(b)

Asat 1 April 2014 N-2-BERA-A 17,562 316,969 295,610 (97,455) (6,735) 32789 15,645 2537 37,079 110252 124253 426,170 1150423

Other comprehensive income/{oss) REEEHRERA/

for the year, net of tax (B8) MBBE:
Eichange difference on transating BERNEECERZE
foreign operations - - - - - 1,188 - - - - 1,188 m 113
Loss for the year REEER - - = = - - - - - (505,581) (505,581) (276,603) (782,184)

Total comprehensive income/{loss) KEE2AMA/ (BB)

for the year &5 = = = = = 1,188 = = = (505,581) (504,393) (275,660) (780,053)
Exercise of share options TERRE 39 1,969 - - - - (58) - - - 1,950 = 1,950
Lapse of share options BREAN - - - - - - (15,399) - = 15399 = = =
Non-controlling interests arising WEHBLAEEL

on the acquisition of FRRER (W)

subsidiaries (Note 11) - - - - - - - - - - - 9178 9178
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTHERR - - - - - - - - 3569 (3,569) - - -

Asat 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=F-FE=A=1+-AR

ZZ-FEMA-A 17,601 318,938 295,610 (97,455) (6,735) 3977 188 2,537 40,648 (383,499) 21810 159,688 381,498
Other comprehensive loss REEEM2ERE
for the year, net of tax fkHE:
Eichange difference on translating BERNEECERZEE
foreign operations - - - - - (19,906) - - - - (19,906) (6,551) (26,457)
Loss for he year REEER p - - - - - - - - (8337) (83372) (1,724) (45,096)
Total comprehensive loss FER2AEREE
for the year - = = - - (19,906) = S = (#3372) (63,278) (8275 (71,553)
Fquity-setled share-based payments ~ MEREETHRH
ARRZAR - - - - - - 19376 - - - 19376 - 19,376
Exercise of share options fEERE 37 333 - - - - (1,541) - - - 25,159 - 25,159
Deemed disposal of interest in RELER-BHERAZ
a subsidiary s - - - (29,08) - - - - - - (29,208) 63,409 34201
Additional nterest n a subsidary -BHELAZEMER - - - 550 - - - - - - 550 (550) -
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTITHE - - - - - B - - 2474 (2,470 = = =
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 12) HE-BRELF (K1) - - - - - (139) - - - - (139) (1,891) (2,030)
Issue of convertible note EOTEREE - - - - - - - 9,64 - - 9624 - 9624
Deferred taxation of convertible notes ~ WERZE 2 ELHE - - - - - - - 1,929) - - (1,929 - (1,929
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-REZA=1-R 17,978 351,261 295,610 (126,113) (6,735 13,932 12,03 10,232 8312 (429,345) 181,965 212,381 394,346
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEmBER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2008.

As stipulated by the relevant People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
laws and regulations, the subsidiaries of the Company established
in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the
statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the reserve balance
has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve
fund can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors and
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.

The increase in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$579,395,000 of the Group as the result of capital reduction
taken by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The decrease in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$283,785,000 during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented
special interim dividend paid in specie in connection with the
separate listing of shares of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia
Group”), a subsidiary of the Company, on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
11 October 2013.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of operations
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in Note 3.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEEmEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

(e)

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange the grant of the relevant
options over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The amount is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.

The share-based payment reserve which is expired would be released
directly to retained profits.

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible notes issued. Convertible notes issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition at the fair
values of the convertible notes, which is determined by independent
qualified professional valuers.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$89,802,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the difference
between the amount of special interim dividend paid in specie and
the non-controlling interests’ share of net assets of Wanjia Group
pursuant to the separate listing of shares of Wanjia Group.

The decrease in other reserve of approximately HK$7,653,000
during the year ended 31 March 2014 represented the capitalised
listing expenses arised from the separate listing of shares of Wanjia
Group.

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interest of
Fuzhou Province Huihao City Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Limited
(“Fuzhou Huihao”) by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000.
The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao agreed to pay
RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou Huihao. The
Group recognised a decrease in other reserve of approximately
HK$29,208,000.

On 9 September 2015, the Group further acquired 0.51% equity
interest of Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company
Limited (the “Huihao Sihai”) by way of increasing the registered
capital, as a result other reserve was increased approximately
HK$550,000.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—EB—-R¥ —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Ft 5 FTET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BEEXBEzHERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BB Al E 1R (41,154) (771,395)
Adjustments for: FEER
Interest income FE WA (1,206) (4,139)
Interest expenses HE B X 19,464 11,520
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FE {70 = 3518 8l 1,405 1,257
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERREBITE
equipment 18,679 14,678
Change in fair value of investment property REYENFEEE 490 252
Change in fair value of derivative TTESMI AR EEZE
financial instruments (17) 100
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HENE BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment B (k&) 551 (4)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BfBATRIZEE 12 772 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MBS R EAMEKTRIE
trade and other receivables R RERE 5,595 5,317
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in TME SR H i E L RE
respect of trade and other receivables R REEEEE (910) (818)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE - 785,169
Equity-settled share-based payments DB RS a5 E 30 LURR 12
RERZNARK 19,376 -
Operating cash inflows before movements EEESEFHKLE
in working capital WERA 23,045 41,937
Decrease in inventories FERD 13,803 13,928
Decrease in trade and other receivables and B Z Kk HEIWRIER
deposits RERD 166,066 71,503
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 N H i fE A+ 3R I8 R A (12,053) (111,913)
Decrease in amounts due to non-controlling  FE{J3EIE R IR 3R 2 B R A
shareholders (485) (66)
Decrease in financial asset at fair RATEEBERIIEKZ
value through profit or loss B EERS - 1,259
Net cash generated from operations X BB S FEE 190,376 16,648
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EHBEEEREH (5,.754) (17,074)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating (K& %F&FFE ~
activities (FTRA)BELFE 184,622 (426)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it 5 THET F&T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRREIDZRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 WF & 1,206 4,139
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE K %&?&1% (43,335) (20,817)
Additions of prepaid lease payments AERNEER (7,934) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEKHBA 7
BERAFHE 12 2,107 =
Deemed disposal of interest in a subsidiary RIEHER
— R B A B 2 Rz 16,314 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEVE BRERSEZHEHEZ
plant and equipment P18 78 - 396
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WK B AR e R TR
subsidiaries - (4,002)
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFTARESEE (31,642) (20,284)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES B EBIZ R &R E
Interest paid 2HRE (12,927) (9,749)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2R RITERRD 6,874 4,461
Proceeds from issue of convertible note BITARREBE S RIE
net of cost HIBR B AR 82,225 =
Proceeds from exercise of share options TREBREMS A 25,159 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERAEBRE 124,059 153,067
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEX (190,252) (132,684)
Net cash generated from financing activities BLEEE TSR & F5E 35,138 15,095
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRBE&£SEEREE
cash equivalents B (RY)BRE 188,118 (5,615)
Cash and cash equivalents FMZReRB&FERA
at the beginning of the year 88,793 92,418
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate HEEREFH 2 E
changes (27,199) 1,990
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBASREEFERE
at the end of the year 249,712 88,793
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these B zMERZEFmeBRR2 8D

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
May 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange. The registered office
of the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681 GT George Town, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The head office and principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing,
101 King's Road, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of
the Company, and the functional currency of most of its
subsidiaries is Renminbi (“RMB"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in thousands of units of HK$
(HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
PRC. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following new Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group's
financial year beginning on 1 April 2015.

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance

and position.

The nature and impact of each amendment is described

below.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 apply to contributions from
employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. The
amendments simplify the accounting for contributions
that are independent of the number of years of employee
service, for example, employee contributions that are
calculated according to a fixed percentage of salary. If the
amount of the contributions is independent of the number
of years of service, an entity is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction of service cost in the period in
which the related service is rendered. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group does not have

defined benefit plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRSs included
in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
and 2011-2013 Cycle for the first time in the current
year. One of the annual improvements requires entities
to disclose judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria set out in paragraph 12 of HKFRS
8 Operation Segments. The Group has several operating
segments and made the required disclosures in accordance
with the amendments in Note 5. The application of these
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28 (2011)

(Amendments)

Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception?
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

(Amendments)

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for Acquisition of

Interests in Joint Operation?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

(Amendments)

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

(Amendments)

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements?

L Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with early application permitted.

by Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with early application permitted.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after the date to
be determined.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which

are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific guidance in
HKFRS 5 for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners
(or vice versa), or when held-for-distribution accounting is

discontinued. The amendments apply prospectively.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing involvement
in a transferred asset for the purpose of the disclosures
required in relation to transferred assets and clarify that
the offsetting disclosures (introduced in the amendments
to HKFRS 7 Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities issued in December 2011 and effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) are not
explicitly required for all interim periods. However, the
disclosures may need to be included in condensed interim
financial statements to comply with HKAS 34 Interim

Financial Reporting.
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
- continued

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the high quality
corporate bonds used to estimate the discount rate for post-
employment benefits should be issued in the same currency
as the benefits to be paid. These amendments would
result in the depth of the market for high quality corporate
bonds being assessed at currency level. The amendments
apply from the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented in the financial statements in which the
amendments are first applied. Any initial adjustment arising
should be recognised in retained earnings at the beginning

of that period.

The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify the requirements
relating to information required by HKAS 34 that is
presented elsewhere within the interim financial report but
outside the interim financial statements. The amendments
require that such information be incorporated by way of a
cross reference from the interim financial statements to the
other part of the interim financial report that is available to
users on the same terms and at the same time as the interim

financial statements.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended
in October 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include
(a) impairment requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised; and
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in

the future may have an impact on the amounts reported

in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial

liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets, it is not

practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect

until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011) /Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
clarify that the exemption from preparing consolidated
financial statements is available to a parent entity that is a
subsidiary of an investment entity, even if the investment
entity measures all its subsidiaries at fair value in accordance
with HKFRS 10. The amendments also clarify that the
requirement for an investment entity to consolidate
a subsidiary providing services related to the former’s
investment activities applies only to subsidiaries that are not

investment entities themselves.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the remeasurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new

associate or joint venture.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for
Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operation

The amendments to HKFRS 11 provide guidance on how
to account for the acquisition of a joint operation that
constitutes a business as defined in HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations. Specifically, the amendments state that the
relevant principles on accounting for business combinations
in HKFRS 3 and other standards (e.g. HKAS 36 Impairment
of Assets regarding impairment testing of a cash
generating unit to which goodwill on acquisition of a joint
operation has been allocated) should be applied. The same
requirements should be applied to the formation of a joint
operation if and only if an existing business is contributed to
the joint operation by one of the parties that participate in

the joint operation.

A joint operator is also required to disclose the relevant
information required by HKFRS 3 and other standards for

business combinations.

The amendments to HKFRS 11 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
do not anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKFRS 11 will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts, describes regulatory
deferral account balances as amounts of expense or income
that would not be recognised as assets or liabilities in
accordance with other standards, but that qualify to be
deferred in accordance with IFRS/HKFRS 14 because the
amount is included, or is expected to be included, by the
rate regulator in establishing the price(s) that an entity can

charge to customers for rate regulated goods or services.

The amendments to HKFRS 14 apply prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 14 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes

effective.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

- continued

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,

the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract

- Step 3: Determine the transaction price

- Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal

with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures

are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide

a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the

Group performs a detailed review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contain a Lease”,
HK(SIC) — Int 15 “Operating Lease — Incentives” and
HK(SIC) — Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. HKFRS 16 eliminates
the classification by a lessee of leases as either operating
or finance. Instead all leases are treated in a similar way to
finance leases in accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”. Under
HKFRS 16, leases are recorded on the statement of financial
position by recognizing a liability for the present value of
its obligation to make future lease payments with an asset
(comprised of the amount of lease liability plus certain
other amounts) either being disclosed separately in the
statement of financial position (within right-of-use assets)
or together with property, plant and equipment. The most
significant effect of the new requirements will be an increase
in recognised lease assets and financial liabilities. There are
some exemptions. HKFRS 16 contains options which do not
require a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for (a) short
term leases (i.e. lease of 12 months or less, including the
effect of any extension options) and (b) leases of low value
assets (for example, a lease of a personal computer). HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor’'s accounting

requirements in HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HKFRS 16 Leases — continued

Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. In classifying a sublease, an
intermediate lessor shall classify the sublease as a finance

lease or an operating lease as follows:

(a) if the head lease is a short-term lease that the entity, as
a lessee, the sublease shall be reclassified as an operating
lease; (b) otherwise, the sublease shall be classified by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, rather than by reference to the underlying asset.
HKFRS 16 clarifies that a lessee separates lease components
and service components of a contract, and applies the lease

accounting requirements only to the lease components.

The Company is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of application of HKFRS 16, the
directors consider that it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of the adoption of HKFRS

16 until the Company performs a detailed review.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 give some guidance on how to

apply the concept of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors do
not anticipate that the application of these amendments
to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two

limited circumstances:

(@) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of

revenue; or

(b)  when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the

intangible asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material

impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

ERAHIIREETTEMBER
HERA ([HFRMEREEN])
—#&
FEEEHENE 1R EFETHER
E38E (ERTH ) BRENBERMBEZ
EW TG E
BERGTENFIGRZBITAZE LB
BE BEERREEEEAUKREAE
W2 E L - BBEFTERIZE385E 2187
ARG AR 2R BN AL IEEFEE
EEEcaBEEE - WIEEBREATRUT
1B A BR 1B T 4 HERD -

(a) EEFEERUNRBREE

by ENEREFEEzWZRBEEK
B HRTES B -

ZEBIABRR-_B-—AR"FE-A—BR
ZERBZFENBRENERM-
EEHEY ERASBEHENE16RRE

BE RS8R 2 BT AR T YA
EEZGAMBRRBREAYE -

EEERBEEEAGRAE 2015/2016 F R

85



86

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments

in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate

financial statements:
- At cost;

- In accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(or HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9); or

- Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.

The accounting option must be applied by category of

investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change

in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 First time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, HKASs
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and by the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("CQO") (Cap. 622) regarding preparation of accounts and
directors’ reports and audits became effective for the
Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2016.
Further, the disclosure requirements set out in the Listing
Rules regarding annual accounts have been amended with
reference to the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs.
Accordingly, the presentation and disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to comply with
these new requirements. Comparative information in respect
of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not

disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group in the preparation of the financial statements is set

out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments) and investment properties that are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies below, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration of given in

exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value
in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of preparation — continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

3 potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote

holders or other parties;

3 rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at

previous shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HZ =& —

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously recognisesd in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date, except that:

(iy deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

3.

FEEMHRRBE &

REBaH

W BB SE SR AU R A BR - RS HHROFT
EERRERQAVENE MAERERH
FEEEZINEE FAREELENEHEW
BLIAREEANBERAEEBBEK
WELHEFEMBTHRERKER
MWD FENAE - FRRBH KA —RK
REERRIBHEPHER -

TRULEE B A - B WUIE BY AT R B B R P
EMRENWE R FERR U
TEMRBRSH

It

() EEBEEENREREESEF
ZHEENEERNEED BIREE
B ERE2RAEHEREEER
ERE19NEERANERRE

(i) BHEWWBLUROZIANRZEEH
HUAREE R ARSI
BB AROXFNRZBEN
BEIRATE HREEABHR
BEMBRELZAE2RUARGHE
BONREE R

(i) REBEFBUBREENFREHE
FRBEERCKRIEEEXEBR IR
RUEEEE (FHEMAR) RiFZ

R E -

EEERBEEEAGRAE 2015/2016 F R

93



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z ==&

Bt 75 3R R M &

—RE=ZRA=+—HLEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair values or another measurement basis required by
another HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwiill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (the “CGUs")
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to

benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Revenue recognition - continued

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group
maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold.

Provision of general hospital services
Revenue from provision of general hospital service is

recognised when the services are provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans is recognised using the

original effective interest rate.

Rental income
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms

of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair values at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights

Prepaid lease payments for land use rights are stated as
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of interest in
leasehold land are amortised on a straight line basis over the

relevant interest in leasehold land.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any;

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment,
the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that

asset.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as
follows:
Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income.

Impairment of tangible assets (other than
goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite lives)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
the other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
liabilities. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
or equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt within

equity.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when they related to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business

combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivable and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"). The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE —F— ~FE=A=+—HIELFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
RVATTP

Financial Assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial

asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

3 it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future; or

3 on initial recognition it is a part of an identified
portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Financial Assets at FVTPL — continued

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combines contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates and dividend or interest earned on the financial

asset and is included in the “other revenue”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are

carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial

asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and others receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in die number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of 90 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not

exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities

and equity instruments are set out below.

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's
financial liabilities are generally classified into other financial
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of

financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where

appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
both financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the

holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity

(convertible notes reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible notes — continued

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
notes reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income upon conversion or

expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible notes reserve. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible notes using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the issue of the financial guarantee contract.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises and associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises

a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is

recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carries at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

3 exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency

borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

For the purpose of presenting the Financial Information, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each of the Track Record Period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence or
joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated

exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences

arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group's

operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

and at banks, which are not restricted to use.

Provisions

Provisions recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage
and the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material,

these amounts are stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and to the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes for the employees of the Group’s overseas entities
are recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit
plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into
separate entities such as social security plans in the PRC,
and the Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions of any of the funds do not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The
Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are

recognised in the financial year to which they relate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the binominal lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair value of
share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the period in which the

costs are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being

negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties under construction have been
accounted for in the same way as completed investment
properties. Specifically, construction costs incurred for
investment properties under construction are capitalised
as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE —F— ~FE=A=+—HIELFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEgHBFHE-&
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions REALTEZS
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: HEASERBEEzALIE:
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) M—BALTHZALTRERTRK
related to the Group if that person: ERETIHRG AERNEEEE
I8

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; () EHHERZESRER;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEEERTE

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) BAEERAEBEFATEE
the Group or of a parent of the Group. EEAENKE -

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) HBTHIER —EEEBEARE
conditions applies: EEBEE:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERHEASEAR-£H
same group (which means that each parent, WEEAR (RREBZEA
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the 7 M E QR R E R E A
others). HEIEREE) ©

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —EEEBES —BEREAEK
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a ERAFEERT (A&
member of a group of which the other entity is a BeHE N ARREE AT M
member). F—BRAREEZHRER

7)o
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions — continued

(b) Any entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: — continued
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies

which are described in Note 3, management has made

certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor balances
are collectible and follow up actions are promptly
carried out if the agreed credit periods have been
exceeded. However, from time to time, the Group may
experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of
trade debtor balances are called into doubts, specific
provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made
based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivable balances and write-off
history. Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become uncollectible
and result in a subsequent write-off of the related
receivable to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Changes in the
collectability of trade receivables for which provisions

are not made could affect the results of operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgement from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable

amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(e)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgements are required
in determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions

in the period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property is
individually determined at the end of each reporting
period based on its market value and by adopting
direct comparison method. Direct comparison method
assumes each of these properties is capable of being
sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference to comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market
condition, the fair value of the investment properties

will change in the future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

(g) Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions
The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
has merged its organisation into two operating divisions:
provision of general hospital services, and pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business. The chief operating decision maker has decided
to combine the provision of general hospital service and the
provision of healthcare and hospital management services
into one single operation division in order to manage and
review the performance of the hospital related business
more efficiently. These divisions are the basis on which the

Group reports its segment information.

4. FRFRERARZIERRE

— iR
(9) BEBSEXBZLAFEHZEHE

RAFREBRESE Bt AE
EES (BEES) URHNTRRZ
MK WEE B S 2 AR A
EXZHBATDRERHERANR
FE - E R EE KRR ERR
MERERZEMAE - BEKAE  EF
EmAARE M D EREEEE
BETZHENER REREH
REFBRAHLIHEMAERER
REMEIANBREREZ  EAEH
HEBYZARRRBEBNRAT
BB WEREMET

SEEH
RERIERDBEXRRAGMEOERS
BAREFABRE2ERNZERIH
ZEmBAREMAZRBER - RNEEE
HAgEAMmEKSE 2 8 REGS T
B RS AREYMER S HAREY
TEBEHEXER TRLEBERRECRE
HRHEGEHEBREBUREHRERER
BREERBEHA—BAE— KL 8
DERRMERR BN ERAEEL 2
KB -ZEPENAKEBEH S BER
ZEHE
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5.

2%

ANEZA=Z+-BHLEEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 March 2016

5.

SHWEH-&

SRR RRER

BE_ZT-A"F=AZ+—HL*EE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EPHBER
RtGaH SBLURED
BERERY SEEHEES H4 =8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET THET THET F#ET
Revenue i &
External sales HIMEE 252,844 1,321,763 - 1,574,607
Inter-segment sales PEEHE = = - -
Total revenue B 252,844 1,321,763 - 1,574,607
Inter-segment sales are charged at ~ D ERIHENRAF
arm’s length HEWE
Results £ 1 |
Segment results PEEE 5,242 9,120 - 14,362
Unallocated other revenue and RO E KRR KA
income 707
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBARZEE (772)
Unallocated corporate expenses RABzEEZE (35,987)
Loss from operations REXKER (21,690)
Finance costs BHEEHR (19,464)
Loss before taxation R AR (41,154)
Taxation BB (3,942)
Loss for the year rEEEE (45,096)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2016

5. FWEH |
PHRERAR

R-S—X"EF=ZA=+—H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of ~ pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
ENRER
REGaN SHLUREN
BREE SEZHERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET T#ET
Consolidated statement of financial position & B # kil &
Assets H"E
Segment assets PEEE 219,238 614,471 833,709
Unallocated corporate assets RO LEEE 44,161
Consolidated total assets RREEME 877,870
Liabilities g
Segment liabilities PEEE 53,677 264,072 317,749
Convertible notes ARREE 83,178
Promissory note RAEE 74,104
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 841
Unallocated corporate liabilities APBzL¥8E 7,652
Consolidated total liabilities GEEEHE 483,524
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5.

Other segment information

SHEEH-®
Hftt & FEH

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_T—RF=A=+—HLEE
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EMHER
REGaH FHLUREN
5 B B 75 TEEREER RAE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Other information Htt&EH
Capital expenditure* EREL 39,367 11,891 11 51,269
Depreciation wE 12,225 6,449 5 18,679
Amortisation of prepaid BAHERERS
lease payments 1,040 365 - 1,405
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERZEZ
plant and equipment B# 214 337 - 551
Impairment loss recognised HEZREMERTE
in respect of trade and BRZREERE
other receivables 4,419 1,176 - 5,595
Reversal of impairment loss HEZREMERTE
recognised in respect of B ZAEEERE
trade and other receivables (227) (683) - (910)
Change in fair value of derivative ~ T SBIEAFEET
financial instruments - - (17) (17)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE-BHBARZER - 772 - 772
Change in fair value of REMEZATVELE
investment property - 490 - 490
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant S EXBEEEFENE BEREEN

and equipment and prepaid lease payments.
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GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment revenue and results

For the year ended 31 March 2015

5.

BHE-Z-—RAF=A=+—HILFE

STHREHE-&
SRR KRR
Pharmaceutical

wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMHER
RELZEN DEAREY
B R TEEHEER e =2E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET TET TER
Revenue i &
External sales HIMEE 214,040 1,566,269 = 1,780,309
Inter-segment sales PEEHE - 1,418 (1,418) =
Total revenue Yl 214,040 1,567,687 (1,418) 1,780,309
Inter-segment sales are charged at PEREHEDRAT
arm's length HEKE
Results F 1]
Segment results PEEE 9,669 (756,100) = (746,431
Unallocated other revenue and RAEZ Eb MR IEA
income 23
Unallocated corporate expenses RABzEEZE (13,467)
Loss from operations R ERER (759,875)
Finance costs BHEEHR (11,520)
Loss before taxation BB AR (771,395)
Taxation | (10,789)
Loss for the year rEEER (782,184)
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GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SHEEH-®
SHRERAR

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5.

Segment assets and liabilities

As at 31 March 2015 R-E—HF=A=+—H

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
BYIRER
BftRen AR EY)
BRRE SEEHEEEE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
Consolidated statement of financial position & B # kil &
Assets HE
Segment assets PEEE 223,334 644,490 867,824
Unallocated corporate assets APEBZEEE 7,167
Consolidated total assets GEEE4E 874,991
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities PHEE 40,179 367,781 407,960
Convertible notes EE:T S 5,432
Promissory note ARREE 72,712
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 357
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEB2tEEE 7,032
Consolidated total liabilities GEEEHEE 493,493
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. DIEEHE &

Hftt 5 A EH

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BHE-Z-—RAF=A=+—HILFE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EMHER
REGEH DEUREY
BRRS TEEHEER AR &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TiEx
Other information Hth & #
Capital expenditure* BERRZ* 35,057 15,346 7 50,410
Depreciation e 9,593 5,081 4 14,678
Amortisation of prepaid AREESEEE
lease payments 1,069 188 - 1,257
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HENE BERZEZ
plant and equipment i/ (FR) (84) 80 4 (4)
Impairment loss on goodwill HMERERSE - 785,169 - 785,169
Impairment loss recognised HEZREMERTE
in respect of trade and BRZREEE
other receivables 1,356 3,961 - 5,317
Reversal of impairment loss HEZREMEKTE
recognised in respect of B ZAEEERE
trade and other receivables (688) (130) - (818)
Change in fair value of MTEESRMIANTEED
derivative financial instruments - - 100 100
Change in fair value of RENENTEZH
Investment property - 252 - 252
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant & EXBMTEENBYE BERSRE

and equipment.
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GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment results represent the profit generated by
each segment without allocation of finance costs, other
corporate revenue, income and expenses, loss on disposal of
a subsidiary and taxation. Unallocated corporate expenses
mainly include directors’ remuneration and other central
administration costs. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include part of property, plant
and equipment, cash and cash equivalents of the
central administration companies. Goodwill is allocated

to reportable segments as described in Note 9.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities, convertible
notes, promissory note, and deferred tax liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly include
the accruals and other payables of the central

administration companies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC. All of
the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in the
PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

DHEH-E

B H

REE $KEEANPE  SEE 2
AREHREREZES -

UTRREEFMEBBIMZERDE
BEZIREE DA

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

FREBDEEZREE
2016 2015
—E—A% —T-5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT
Hong Kong BB 422 415
PRC HE 163,514 144l 902
163,936 142,317

Information about major customers FREEERZCEH

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, no single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue.

Revenue from major services and products
The Group’s revenue from its major services and products
was stated in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.

HE_E—ARERZE—HF=A=1+—
BLEFEE #iEE—ZFRHAEE 2z
BRI10% U £ o

REEFERBREKZBR
AEERBEHIERBRER 2 BEE
NG & M IRRMIFE28 -

Z=EREEEARAT 2015/2016 £ 139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. MR -BER&M
Furniture Machinery
and Leasehold and Motor Office
Building fixtures improvements equipment vehicles  equipment Total
BF FARRE HEMRRE HERER RE  WOERRE A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEL THEL T T T T
Cost BF
As at 1 April 2014 RZZE-NEMA-A 5,939 4,474 35,179 28,360 9,981 27,089 111,022
Additions NE - 623 5,988 2,227 2,984 8,995 20,817
Acquisitions through business  EBEHA B Wi
combination (Note 11) (MzE11) - 389 16,010 11,878 836 480 29,593
Disposals e - - - - (466) (1,061) (1,527)
Exchange realignment ERHE 29 41 346 247 53 157 873
As at 31 March 2015 and RZB-1%
1 April 2015 =A=1+-Bk
—E-1FMA-A 5,968 5,527 57,523 42,712 13,388 35,660 160,778
Additions NE 29,167 439 1,89 7,928 352 3,503 43,335
Disposals HE - - - - (577) (640) (1,217)
Derecognised upon disposal of R HEME L F%
subsidiary (Note 12) KIEFER (WEE12) - - - - - (284) (284)
Exchange realignment ERAR (896) (290) (3,603) (2,337) (574) (1,786) (9,486)
As at 31 March 2016 R-E-~E
=A=1t-H 34,239 5,726 55,816 48,303 12,589 36,453 193,126
Accumulated depreciation BT E
As at 1 April 2014 RZE-MERE-H 1,285 3,980 22,358 22,645 6,745 17,635 74,648
Charge for the year REEZH 178 313 6,285 3,206 1,345 3,351 14,678
Written back on disposals HEREE - - - - (340) (795) (1,135)
Exchange realignment ERHE 1 37 218 165 38 98 557
As at 31 March 2015 and R-E-1%
1 April 2015 ZA=t+-AK
“Z-1¥NA-H 1,464 4,330 28,861 26,016 7,788 20,289 88,748
Charge for the year AEELH 538 356 8,588 4,089 1,159 3,949 18,679
Written back on disposals HEREE - - - - (391) (275) (666)
Derecognised upon disposal of R HEHBEA %
subsidiary (Note 12) K1 (WFE12) - - - - - (62) (62)
Exchange realignment ERHE (97) (225) 2,272) (1,404) (306) (1,041) (5,345)
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-RE
=RA=1+-H 1,905 4,461 35,177 28,701 8,250 22,860 101,354
Net book value BRERE
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-RE
=ZA=t+-H 32,334 1,265 20,639 19,602 4,339 13,593 91,772
As at 31 March 2015 RZE-1F
=ZA=t-H 4,504 1,197 28,662 16,696 5,600 15,371 72,030

The building was held outside Hong Kong under

medium-term lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

EEEBEEEAERLH

7. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 7. AABEAREREA
Total
e
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5% 3
As at 1 April 2014 R-ZE—WFMA—H 42,636
Exchange realignment & 5 A% 207
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE-—HRE=A=+—HEK
—E-AFMA—H 42,843
Additions NE 7,934
Exchange realignment FE 5 A& (2,350)
As at 31 March 2016 R-ZE-R"E=ZRA=+—H 48,427
Accumulated depreciation REth &
As at 1 April 2014 R=-Z-—NFEME—H 10,017
Charge for the year REEXZH 1,257
Exchange realignment 5 53
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE-—HRFE=A=+—HEK
—ZEZ-hFMAB—H 11,327
Charge for the year REEXH 1,405
Exchange realignment FE R AR (607)
As at 31 March 2016 R=ZB-R"E=ZR=+—H 12,125
Net book value RE$E
As at 31 March 2016 BW-ZE—XRE=R=+—H 36,302
As at 31 March 2015 R=—Z-RAF=R=+—H 31,516

2015/2016 3% 141



142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

7.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS - continued 7. RABEERE-&
2016 2015
—E—XRE¥E —E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREHEZRIR:
Current asset (included in trade and REBEE (FFTAEZREAM
other receivable and deposits) (Note 14) EWwFEHEREZES) (HiE14) 1,405 1,261
Non-current asset FRBEE 34,897 30,255
36,302 31,516
The Group's prepaid lease payments represented payments AEBZEMGHEEREARVRFEZ

for land use rights situated in the PRC. The leasehold lands
have a lease term of 25 to 40 years and the Group has
processed the land use rights of the leasehold land during

the lease term.

At 31 March 2016, prepaid lease payments with carrying
amount of approximately HK$10,623,000 (2015:
HK$1,909,000) were pledged as collaterals to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 22).

Amortisation on prepaid lease payments of approximately
HK$1,405,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,257,000)
have been charged to the administrative expenses in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the years ended 31 March 2016

and 2015 respectively.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8. BEYE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Completed investment property BERIREYHE 7,199 8,093

At fair value BATFE

As at 1 April RMEMA—H 8,093 8,306
Fair value change NFEEE (490) (252)
Exchange realignment BE & FE B (404) 39
As at 31 March KR=H=-—58 7,199 8,093

The investment property amounted to approximately
HK$7,199,000 of the Group were stated at fair value as at
31 March 2016 (2015: approximately HK$8,093,000). The
fair value were arrived at based on the valuations carried
out by an independent firm of qualified professional valuers,
Asset Appraisals Limited, (“AAL"), who have among their
staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category of
the property being value. The valuations conform to the
Valuation Standards published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. The completed investment property has been
valued using the direct comparison approach. The direct
comparison approach is adopted where comparison based

on prices information of comparable property is made.

There had been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
property, the highest and best use of the property is their

current use.

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H &x5H
K7,199,0008 Tt (ZFE—HF: 4
8,093,000 T) 2 REWER A FE
DR - N FEDNDREHBIYISEREHE
HEMPHEEETEBEBRAERL A
(TAAL ) FrE(EE T EEE AT ATLEE
MAALBIE AT BIEMEEEE 1Y
ETHEYEZNERENERIEHMG
BB FRHAEREEBIEMES Y
MR EER - B3k TIRE G B E
L BCRETAE  CIREUR B AT Lt &Y %
MERERETLER 2 EEEEB L

RE-FEMRANGEZLEREE
R E) - REETHIZR B D FER - WX
RERBECAREZAMRAE-
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued

The analysis of the carrying amount of investment property is

8. BEVXR-&

REVEZREEIFTWT :

as follows:
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E-—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T8t
Land located in the PRC: NAFEZ i
Medium-term lease FREFFE A 7,199 8,093

The Group leases out its investment property which are shop
units of a 9-storey composite building to various tenants.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 year to 5
years, at the end of which all terms are renegotiable. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals. For the year ended
31 March 2016, property rental income earned during the
year was approximately HK$265,000 (2015: HK$321,000).
The property held had committed tenants for 2.6 years
(2015: 3.4 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
Group contracted with tenants for the following future

minimum lease receivables:

FEERHEREYE (B EBIBSHKRE
REZEHEN) HEFZEEF-HE
BEOL A ESF FTEHEERAREH
#AEFET HEASEESAEL -
BE_Z—R"E=A=+—HLEE"
FRARBMZYER S WAL 5H265,000%
7T (ZFE—FHF:321,00087T) - FiEH
MERBECAZERFRA26F (=21
Fi34F) R|EBMR AEEHEAF
AHZARSEERESOT

2016 2015

—E—xE —T-HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET TR

Within one year —FR 273 226
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_Z2FELF (BRERWME) 459 462
732 688
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 B Z =& —

e MBHRRMEE

ANEZAZ=Z+-HLEEFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued 8. BREVE-&
Details of the Group’s investment property and information RZE—RER-Z-—HF=R=1+—
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 B AEEZREMEFERERATE

are as follows: BHkzEHRNT :
Fair value
as at
31 March
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2016
R-E—RE
=B=+—H
E—1R B EER ZOTFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

Investment property unit NRFEZ
located in the PRC REMHEENL - 7,199 - 7,199
Fair value
as at
31 March
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
R-Z—5F
=E[= r= 2
E—R B E=R ZAYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TET
Investment property unit NAREZ

located in the PRC REWMEEN - 8,093 - 8,093
There were no transfers into or out of level 2 or level 3 REBEZE=-ZZ-—XRERKZ= BE=A
during the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. e = Hiﬁfiﬂtﬂfﬁ RAE=

As at 31 March 2016,

carrying amount of approximately HK$7,199,000 (2015:

investment property with

approximately HK$8,093,000) were pledged as collaterals to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 22).

REAHEHBR

R-ZE-XE=ZA=+—H REE
K7,199,000B T (=ZFE—HF 4
8,093,000/ 7t) 2 IRE W ¥ 2 1F R K
MR TFAEBZBITRIEFHIEH (M
522) °

EEERBEEEAGRAE 2015/2016 F R
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTY - continued 8.

The particulars of the investment property as at 31 March
2016 are as follows:

REMR-#E
R-B-—AE=A=+-AREWEZ
HEMT

Attributable

Note:

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

interest of
Location Type Tenure the Group
g By T FREBGES
Shop No. 1 on Level 1, Heng Ye Building, Building and land Medium-term lease 99.80%
Wusi Road, Shaowu City, BFER LT HEEL
Fujian Province, the PRC.
HEREE AR R MK
BERE 1B 1KEH
9. GOODWILL 9. W&
2016 2015
—B—RE¥ —E-EHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost (2% 3
As at 1 April RMBE—H 1,091,921 1,063,233
Additional amounts recognised from BERBECEREH
business combinations occurring iR 2 Zah & EE (FEaE11)
during the year (Note 11) - 28,679
Release of goodwill due to disposal of HE—RNE D RRRZEE
a subsidiary (Note 12) (HfEE12) (1,852) =
Exchange realignment PE & R (19) 9
As at 31 March R=A=+-—8H 1,090,050 1,091,921
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EBR
As at 1 April HMA—H 1,059,982 274,813
Impairment losses recognised FAERAREEE
during the year - 785,169
As at 31 March R=A=+—H 1,059,982 1,059,982
Carrying amounts IR {E
As at 31 March ®W=A=+—H 30,068 31,939

fi s -

EEBERENRA ZFERGES UHRRME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more
frequently if there are indication that goodwill might be
impaired. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
has been allocated to the following cash generating

units (CGUs). The carrying amount of goodwill (net of

10. 7 2R E R

AEESFETHEREIE METR
BTrEHEARE BMEREE MBS -3
BEIETMS BBEIMETIREE
EBV-R=_B-—ARER-Z-—HF=A
=t+—B BEZKREE (NKRAREE

accumulated impairment losses) as at 31 March 2016 and EiE) D EAT -
2015 are allocated as follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and EEMmEBXPABLESER
Chinese Composite Hospital Company BRAR ([FZHEEEX])
Limited (“Jiaxing Shuguang”)
— provision of general hospital services in - R ERMHEE EERRE
the PRC 2,899 2,899
Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Management EMNERTEEEZR
Consultancy Limited and Zhuhai Jiulong BRAGBRKENESE
Hospital Company Limited (“Zhuhai BRAR ([ERBHAEE])
Jiulong”)
— Provision of general hospital services — R B A 4R & MBS B AR 75
in the PRC 26,827 26,827
Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Company HrgEs (RM)ARAA
Limited (“Quanzhou Huihao") (TRMELF])
— Retail of pharmaceutical and related -RHABEZERK
products in the PRC HEERZE 342 361
Hui Hao Yi Yao (Xiamen) Company Limited 2#FE8ZE (EF)HRA T
(Xiamen Hui Hao) (EMELHF)
— wholesales and distribution of —-RAPEMERIFEEDR
pharmaceutical and related HEEm
products in the PRC - 1,852
30,068 31#939

EEERBEEEAGRAE 2015/2016 F R
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Jiaxing Shuguang - Provision of general hospital
services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-years period, as the directors consider the lease
term of hospital premises as the budgeted period, and a
discount rate of 14.22% (2015: 12.04%) per annum. Cash
flow projections during the budgeted period are based on
the same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

Zhuhai Jiulong - Provision of general hospital
services in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-years period, as the directors consider the lease
term of hospital premises as the budgeted period, and a
discount rate of 14.22% (2015: 12.04%) per annum. Cash
flow projections during the budgeted period are based on
the same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Quanzhou Huihao - Retail of pharmaceutical and
related products in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-years period, and a discount rate of 13.36%
(2015: 11.95%) per annum. The cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated
using a steady 8% (2015: 8%) per annum by reference to
market rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
its expectations for the market development.

Xiamen HuiHao - Wholesales and distribution of
pharmaceutical and related products in the PRC
For the year ended 31 March 2015, the recoverable
amount of this CGU is determined based on a value in
use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
5-years period and with discount rate of 11.95% per annum.
Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are based
on the same expected gross margins throughout the budget
period. The management considers that it is prudent and
appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual growth rate of
cash flows projections for each flows beyond the budgeted
period. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
on which reasonable amount is based would not cause
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determines
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and
the expectations for the market development. During the
year ended 31 March 2016, Xiamen HuiHao was disposed by
the Group, the goodwill is included in the determination of
the loss on disposal.

10. BEKEINR &

RMEF-RIPBZELRERESR
TE
HWReELENZATWRESIEIIIREF
REEFEEE mEABEREERERE
It EZRERFHUKBERSHZ
ReR2@A URITEEEF13.36%
(ZE—HRF:11.95% )T E -FAHEHR
ZBEESHREFER DEREEEEHANHE
EzEAEMNEFE - HEHEZRER
EAIZZMBHNELUSY% (ZE—HF:
8% ) ZBEFEREHEF MIBREYW
FHRBMEZRATIGERE - EEEN
5 stEAWRE S EAKIEZE X BRZR
REREZEMSESE T2E3URE
EEBENzEAAEBRE T KRE S
HE - EEEREBEIRBERHEEMER
RzERAEEEEERNE-

BEMEHF-RPERERSBEGSR
HRE G
BE-_Z-—RAFE=FA=+—HILEE Ik
RemptBEuzA BB NRELA
BESEEE MEAEBEREEEREM
HEZRELFHMBEREEMSEH 2R
SREFER UREERESF11.95%5
HE-JHEHRZHEESRETER  NERE
BEEHRNERZEAEFETE - EE
BRA KHBERERAEREZRES
BREWEEDNBEFERBEE HIER
RWABBANS2RAFHERR -BEE
BifE T ESEMKIEZ TS EL
ReEsBENEETRESE EEER
EBREREREHMHBREZTBIEERE
HEEMNE-RBE-ZE—RE=ZA=+—
BLEEER  AEEEEMEFEE &
BHALEZEBEBZEE -
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - Pharmaceutical
wholesale distribution and pharmaceutical retail
chain business in the PRC

During the year ended 31 March 2015, as a result of
the promulgation and implementation of the new Good
Supply Practice in Fujian, the PRC which imposes stringent
regulations on pharmaceutical distributor operation and
causes significant decrease in pharmaceutical wholesales
business of Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries. According to
subsequent publications of relevant government policies
in effect, only 10 medicine distributors remained on the
enterprise list and those unqualified distributors are not
qualified to supply pharmaceutical products to public
hospitals and healthcare institutions under new tenders
commensurate with the new Good Supply Practice. Majority
of the existing distributor customers of Nurture Fit and its
subsidiaries, who are not on the new Good Supply Practice
qualified enterprise list, are expected to walk out from
the sector. As a result, the projected sale revenues from
the wholesale business are expected to tumble over the

projection period.

Also, due to the constraint of the existing direct sale
distribution facilities of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries
where it is unable to cater for all the public hospitals and
public healthcare institutions over the whole Fujian Province,
the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries is expected to take up
only part of the market shares on distribution sale business
which are covered by those existing distributor customers. As
a result, there shall be dropped in the overall market share
of the Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries over the wholesale and

distribution segment.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Nurture Fit and its subsidiaries - Pharmaceutical
wholesale distribution and pharmaceutical retail
chain business in the PRC - continued

As the carrying of this CGU is lower than the
recoverable amount, impairment losses of approximately
HK$785,169,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2015.

The recoverable amount of this cash generating unit
("CGU") is determined based on a value in use calculation
which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period and with discount rates of 11.95% per annum.
Cash flow projections during the budgeted period are
based on the same expected gross margins throughout
the budget period. The management considers that it is
prudent and appropriate to adopt a steady 8% annual
growth rate of cash flows projections for each flows
beyond the budgeted period. This growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the market.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

10. &R E AR — &

GERREMEBAR -RPEZERIM
RoBREATEEREE &

HRZESELEEN 2 REABERAT)
[E] & %8 # 4 £785,169,00078 Tt Z B B
EBEIRBZ-_ZFE—HF=A=+—H
L FERER -

hReEFSEN ([BeELEN]) 2T
WEEEDREFEAEENHEEE Mt
AEERBEEEBAMEZRERFH
MEEERSH2RERETEA - AR AL
BESFNS%TE-HEHAZES
REFER DEREEEEHANERZE
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

1. KB E 27

Date of Proportion of
Principal activity acquisition share acquired Consideration
TEEH g 4=k e 6 B £ LE ) {7
% HK$'000
% TER
Xiamen Huihao (Note a) Pharmaceutical wholesale and 21 April 2014 60 6,204
distribution business
in the PRC
EMERF (Kisa) RPBZERMER D HER “EZ-NEMA=+—H
Nanping Huihao (Note b) Pharmaceutical wholesale and 15 June 2014 60 9,417
distribution business
in the PRC
AT EH (HiEb) RABEZERMERDHEFEE —E-mNERATERA
Zhuhai Jinlong Provision of general 4 September 2014 100 47,707
hospital services in the PRC
HRENE RAEREGE &R RS “Z-MENAMA
63,328
Note: B &E
(@)  The name of Company have been changed from [& B & R & (a9 RUBRBEEZTAE AREBEHER
ZEHHRAR to BHFEZE(EM)BRAR after acquisition ERRESRAGEFARTEZ (B
completed. F)BRRAF -
(b)  The name of Company have been changed from BZ&1E & (b)y RKBIEZTHE AREBEHBEE

BEERAT to BIFEEE (FF)BRADA after acquisition

completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 1. IRBMEATF — &
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RBBEHAMEBEERERZ2EE:
acquisition:
Zhuhai Xiamen Nanping
Jiulong Huihao Huihao Total
KENE BRI BEER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Property, plant and equipment ME BERRE 29,525 - 68 29,593
Trade and other receivables E5 RHMEKE 9,952 5,365 29,652 44,969
Inventories #& 1,633 1,171 10,701 13,505
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEER 1,071 4,863 5,685 11,619
Trade and other payables g5 RHMENHRE (21,301) (4,147) (17,855) (43,303)
Bank borrowings ITER - = (12,556) (12,556)
Net assets acquired mMEEEER 20,880 7,252 15,695 43,827

The receivables acquired in these transitions with a fair
value of approximately HK$9,952,000 for Zhuhai Jinlong,
approximately HK$5,365,000 for Xiamen Huihao and
approximately HK$29,652,000 for Nanping Huihao were
approximate to their gross contractual amounts and all

balance was expected to be collectible.

RZEXRZHPRBZAFTENAR
9,952,000 T (BHKBAEMS) * &
5,365,000 T (MEMEHFME) RE
29,652,0008 T (FEFEREEFMS) 2B

MERFECHAENSEEE BFRE

AMEARERE T RE -
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

11. KRB AT — 8

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEEzEmE:
Xiamen Nanping
Zhuhai Jiulong Huihao Huihao Total
HKEnE EMEH BFER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER THET THEx
Consideration transferred BEIRE 47,707 6,204 9,417 63,328
Add: non-controlling interests e EERES - 2,900 6,278 9,178
Less: fair value of identifiable net B ARBI TN EEEREL

assets acquired ALE (20,880) (7,252) (15,695) (43,827)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEE 2 EE 26,827 1,852 - 28,679

The considerations for acquisition of Xiamen Huihao and
Nanping Huihao were satisfied by cash. The consideration
for acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong was satisfied by assuming

all the payment obligations and the liabilities of the loan in

stead and place of the vendors.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong and
Xiamen Huihao because the cost of the combination
included a control premium. In addition, the consideration
paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefits of expected synergies, revenue
growth, future market development and the assembled
workforce of Zhuhai Jiulong and Xiamen Huihao. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill

because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

WEEMEFREFEFZRECUR
ExXM - BWRHRENEZRECEBKE
HERBEERZAAENREERAEEX M-

HREHRABFEEREEE  RRBER
BAERBEMZFELEHE U A
BEHAXN 2REBFHEEKENEN
kEMEHFNFARHEME  WAZR -
ARTSERREZESIELENAN S
BENESE -ZENa TS HEBE ) ME
A BAAZSENEY TSR ELE

ERRRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued 1. IRIB B AT — &
None of the goodwill arising on these acquisitions is HZERBELECHEER A

expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

The non-controlling interests in Xiamen Huihao and RWERHRRACEMEFREEELT
Nanping Huihao recognised at the acquisition date were ZHEREEDSZEREMEEIED
measured by reference to the present ownership instruments HEERAARNEEFESRH 2LH
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of their e

identifiable net assets.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries: WIEMEB AR 2R SR EH 5
Zhuhai Xiamen Nanping
Jiulong Huihao Huihao Total
KB EFEH EER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEx THEx TR
Consideration paid in cash UREXFZRE - 6,204 9,417 15,621
Less: cash and cash equivalent BoKERERES
balances acquired LEBALR (1,071) (4,863) (5,685) (11,619)
Net cash (inflow)/outflow Be ORN) /R 3 (1,071) 1,341 3,732 4,002
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GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

1.

12.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Impact of acquisitions on the results of the Group
Revenue of approximately HK$14,348,000 and loss of
approximately HK$ 1,630,000 contributed by Xiamen Huihao,
Revenue of approximately HK$98,813,000 and profit of
approximately HK$738,000 contributed by Nanping Huihao
and Revenue of approximately HK$46,558,000 and profit
of HK$1,846,000 contributed by Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise
Management Consultancy Ltd and Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited were recognised in the Group’s loss for the
year ended 31 March 2015.

Had these business combination be effective at 1 April 2014,
the Revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$1,817,185,000, and the loss for the year would have
been approximately HK$778,914,000. The directors of the
Group consider these number to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for

comparison in future period.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 22 October 2015, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Xiamen Huihao, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement and agreed to sell the entire
60% equity interests in Xiamen Huihao held by Fuzhou
Huihao, with a consideration of RMB3,266,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$4,054,000). The disposal was
completed on 22 October 2015.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

11.

12.

AR P B 2 B) — 8
BEFERHAEEERZIEE
AEBHEE-_ZE-AF=A=+—H81
FEZEBEEABRIAEMEFERZ KR
#914,348,0007% T K &5 18 491,630,0007%8
7T AT EFERMZ U £998,813,0005%
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

12. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued

Summary of the effects of the disposal of Xiamen Huihao are

as follows:

HEEMEFz2E

12. HE—FHMRE L7 -&
BT

HK$'000
TER
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents URERBESEEEE RERZARE 4,054
Analysis of assets and liabilities over KkERNECEERARZAN
which control was lost:
Goodwill 5k 1,852
Property, plant and equipment ME -BERZE 222
Inventories 7E 1,139
Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables £ 5 FE U FRIE - 8 7018 & H b FE W 7R 1B 4,996
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeEHEEH 1,947
Trade and other payables g5 R H M ENFIE (3,525)
Tax payable FE A (53)
Net assets disposed HECZEEFE 6,578
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—FHREBARZER:
Consideration received 2R E 4,054
Net assets disposed of HECZEEFE (6,578)
Release of translation reserve BHGERE (139)
Non-controlling interests RS 1,891
Loss on disposal HEZEE (772)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEEMEFEEZRERAREH
Xiamen Huihao:
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents HUBR&RBEESZEEE R Z2KE 4,054
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of E: HECZRERREEEHEH &R (1,947)
2,107

EEEBEEEAERLH
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GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

12. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY - continued
The loss on disposal is included in the loss for the year
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the period from 1 April 2015
to the date of disposal, Xiamen Huihao was engaged
in wholesales and distribution of pharmaceutical and
related products in the PRC. Revenue of approximately
HK$5,969,000 and loss of approximately HK$761,000
contributed by Xiamen Huihao was recognised in the

Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2016.

12. HE—MMB L7 —#&
HEBEF AGEBREREM2EKSE
RZ2FRNBEBER-B-ZT—AFMA—H
EEHERHLEBE EMNEFRPER
EHYRHEEAB BRI HEEK K
EEBE-_ZT—<E=ZA=t+—HLHF
EZEEANBRREMEFERMZBEN
5,969,00078 7T K & HE 49761,000/8 7T °

13. INVENTORIES 13. &R
2016 2015
—E—XE —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FlT T
Finished goods ZUR 118,574 133,516
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. BERAEMBRRERZRE
DEPOSITS
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE-0fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade receivables g5 BWHIE 211,052 297,403
Bills receivable e 5,854 6,229
Prepayments and deposit paid EANREREFES 74,320 145,130
Prepaid lease payments (Note 7) FENHEERE (eE7) 1,405 1,261
Other receivables Hib W8 57,059 54,094
349,690 504,117
Less: Impairment loss recognised R E fth FE IR HE R Y
in respect of other receivables REEE (10,439) (7,006)
339,251 497,111
The individually impaired other receivables related to debtors 18 Bl R {8 =2 H At FE U R 1B % & A B % R
that were in financial difficulties and the directors of the HoBBHA ARARAESREBAFEERX
Company assessed that the amounts are not expected to be MEZRE EEANRTHEREREE
recovered based on past default experience, payment history AL E S BT EERE o

and subsequent settlement of the debtors.

Included in the Group’s other receivables as at 31 March RZBE-—ARE=A=+—H sTAKXE
2016 were value added tax (“VAT") recoverable of BEMEWFE 2 W EEZER ([E
approximately HK$7,997,000 (2015: HK$8,171,000), loan to EH])#7,997,0008 T (=ZE—FHF:
independent third parties of approximately HK$14,398,000 8,171,0008 ) AR TRILE=F =2
(2015: HK$24,026,000) which is unsecured, carries interest BER#14,398,0008 T (ZE—HF:
at 6% per annum and is recoverable on demand. 24,026,000 7T) ' ZE R A EIKIF &

FRR6%TERBERAUE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14 B REMBRREREE

DEPOSITS - continued

During the year ended 31 March 2015, included in other
receivables, a loan in Zhuhai Jiulong of approximately
HK$47,745,000, which were secured by entire issued share
capital of Zhuhai Jiulong and carries interest at 5% per
annum, was settled due to the Company completed the
acquisition of Zhuhai Jiulong.

As at 31 March 2016, bills receivable of approximately
HK$5,854,000 (2015: HK$6,229,000) will be matured within
six months after the end of the reporting period. All the bills
receivable are denominated in RMB.

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally payable
from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms with
customers from general hospital and healthcare and hospital
management services are normally payable from 0 to 30
days. The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date is as follows:

— &
NEBEE-E—FRFE=A=+—HLEFE"
HttERREBEEERKENLEZERY
47,745,000 T IHHKBAEZE2HBE
BITRAERAREZFERNES%E I
EARRBERBEHRENEMEE

RZBE-RF=ZA=1+—H EKREEY
5,854,000/ T (=& — A F 16,229,000
BT BRI E IR EBSEA AEE o T
FRUEBUAREGE

EoHRBROBEURERTEEHEX
BEFZARARETEARTRKA - FHIR
—RERBZAHRI0EIOAAZM < 4
EHBREREEREBREEREEF 2
NHRAR—REROE3I0H R AT o 23
SRHESRUREZRRIMAT

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-FRF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 161,505 218,913
91 to 180 days 91£180H 41,268 51,122
181 to 365 days 181&£365H 8,279 18,212
Over 365 days HiEB365H 7,280 15,970
218,332 304,217

Less: Impairment loss recognised MBS ERRIBERER Z
in respect of trade receivables REEE (7,280) (6,814)
211,052 297,403
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. Trade receivables are past due
at the end of the reporting period but the Group has not
recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against
any amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty. The
individually impaired trade receivables related to customers
that were in financial difficulties and the directors of the
Company assessed that the amounts are not expected to be
recovered based on past default experience, payment history

and subsequent settlement of the customers.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are

denominated in Renminbi.

Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but

not impaired

14. BEREMEBRRERES

— iR

WEBH T ERE S5 ERRIEAETE
REWBITHENCHEZEFARF B
FEYHRERREH AR B  EREEL
BRARKERE REAFEERILES
REBHEEEFANHRER T TWE o &
SEETERESEHRTEEMERRAR
HfEEmsRIa e - R EEE R R LA
SEEXRRZHF 2 EMFIRFEIESE - @
B {E 2 B 5 B W SR IR S & B B 55 R &
ZEF AAREERBEBERIERRIR
2R BEPARGEBERARER 2714
AEFZEEETERE -

AEE 2 ESEUKE 2 REEAAR
MHE

ERAMERKBREZEZEHRTLZ
1

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FE T

Overdue by: 2
1 to 90 days 1290H 41,268 51,122
91 to 180 days 91£180H 8,279 8821 2
Over 180 days HiB180H - 9,156
Total g 49,547 78,490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. B REMBERZRERRERS
DEPOSITS - continued — 8
Movements in the provision for impairment loss B 55 B W 3% TR R B IS 4R o 1 i 8 B

of trade receivables

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

As at 1 April ROEUA—H 6,814 1,826

Impairment losses reversed VRN k=R A (846) (130)

Impairment losses recognised ERRAZRERE 1,662 5,090

Exchange realignment FE AR (350) 28

As at 31 March R=B=+—8H 7.280 6,814
Ageing of impaired trade receivables EREREERRAZRR

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FH&T

Over 365 days HiEB365H 7.280 6,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 14. B REMBERZRERRSE
DEPOSITS - continued — 8
Movements in the provision for impairment loss H fth FE W 3% TR iR 165 4R 2 1 i 48 B

of other receivables

2016 2015

—E—RE§ —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

As at 1 April ROEUA—H 7,006 7,564
Impairment losses reversed VRN k=R A (64) (688)
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZRERE 3,933 227
Exchange realignment FE AR (436) (97)
As at 31 March R=B=+—8H 10,439 7,006
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

15. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15. fTEEeMmIT R

Redemption
option
contract
EEOHESH
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2014 N-ZE—WEME—H 384
Fair value change AR EEE (100)

As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE—RE=A=+—HK
—ZE—FFEMNAB—A 284
Fair value change NEEEE 17
As at 31 March 2016 BR-_E—XRE=ZA=+—H 301

Note:

Derivative financial instruments represented the early redemption
option element of the convertible notes issued by the Group and are

measured at fair value by an independent valuer using the binomial

B &E -

tree pricing model (“Binomial Model”) at the end of each reporting XN AR FEFE-

period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

16. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 16. e RBEFEREREEM

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 March 2016, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"”) amounted to approximately HK$209,011,000
(2015: HK$81,214,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, but conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through

banks authorisation to conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances are deposits with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

As at 31 March 2016, certain bank deposits of the Group of
approximately HK$6,096,000 (2015: HK$12,970,000) were
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The pledged bank deposits carry interest at 3.5%

(2015: 2.4%) per annum and were denominated in RMB.

BITER

R-ZZE-—RE=A=+—8 FEEZHE
SRESEEEAEGREUARE (AR
¥ 1) T E A E#209,011,0008 T (==
—HF:81,214,0008 ) ZHE AR
MITERRRAHMBEY HAR¥BR
BAENETDEBTHEZINESHIFH
REtEE - EERNEEERE AEEE
HEERBERBETHEER ZRITEA
REHBAHMER-

$B1T 4 85 20 AT S0 30 4B 4 HE X 3243 L
EBRIFRITZER

RZEBE-—RE=A=+—-—H0 A5EE#E
FR1TEF#6,096,0008 T (=ZE—F
F:12,970,0008 ) EEAR FTAEH
ZERITRE IR T KA - 2R A
WITERERERNRISE(ZZE—REF:
4B FHERUARYE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. B &
Number of share Amount
BHn#A & #
HK$'000
TEx
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares EEK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRE{E0.01# T il
- at 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, -RZE—MEMA—H"
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 —Z-HF=ZH=+—H"
—Z-HFMB—HR
—E—R"E=A=+—H 110,000,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference shares &R ZE A KR EF LK
Non-voting convertible preference BSREE.IETZERRETREE
shares of HK$0.01 each 5c B
preference shares of HK$0.01 each BREE.IETZELR
- at 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015, -R-E—-NMEMA—AH
1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016 —Z—-hRfF=A=+—H:
—Z-HAfFMA—HR
—E—-XRE=A=+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

17. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 17. B&X 48
Number of share Amount
Bn8A 4]
HK$'000
FTEx
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBAE:
Ordinary shares EEK
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEVIBTZZER
—at 1 April 2014 —-R-ZE-—NEMA—H 1,153,488,264 11,535
— exercise of share options (note (b)) —1TEERE (FiaE(D)) 3,900,000 39
— converted from convertible preference — BRI R B LR
shares 504,201,680 5,042
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECIEBTZEBER
— at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 -R=-ZE-HF=A=t—-HK
—E-HFEMNA—H 1,661,589,944 16,616
— exercise of share options (note (d)) —TEBRE (M) 37,660,000 377
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BERmE0.01E Iz & &A%
- at 31 March 2016 -R-Z2—RE=PB=+—H 1,699,249,944 16,993
Non-voting convertible preference shares R ZE AR ELKR (Bfit(a))
(note (a))
Non-voting convertible preference shares of S MREE0.01ET 2 BRERE
HK$0.01 each AR E LR
—at 1 April 2014 -RZE-NFNEA—H 602,701,680 6,027
— conversion to ordinary shares —BRAEER (504,201,680) (5,042)
Non-voting convertible preference shares of SREE0.0TEBTZERZRE
HK$0.01 each RRE LR
- at 31 March 2015, 1 April 2015 and -R-ZZ2-HF=A=+—-AH"
31 March 2016 “EZ-EFMA-HR
—E-—ARE=ZB=1+—8H 98,500,000 985

EEERBEEEAGR AT 2015/2016 F R

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

17. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Note:

(a)

The preference shares are non-voting shares. The holders
of the preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, the
holders of the preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company's ordinary shares at
any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1 to 1 each.
The conversion price will be subject to adjustments only upon
occurrence of certain dilutive events.

As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share options
have been exercised to which ordinary shares have not been
allotted. Those ordinary shares were allotted in April 2014.
There was no post-listing share options have been exercised
during the year ended 31 March 2015.

On 9 January, 2015, the Company entered into a deed of
amendments with the holders (the “CPS-II Holders”) of
the preference shares which was allotted and issued on 10
October 2013 (the “CPS-II") for an alteration on the terms
(the “Proposed Alternation”). The Company and the CPS-II
Holders agreed to remove one of the conversion restrictions
of the CPS-Il that no conversion of the CPS-11 would be
permitted, if the conversion shares to be allotted and issued
upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to CPS-
Il by the holders of CPS-Il together with the ordinary shares
already held by the holders and his/her/its/their parties acting
in concert represent 30% or more of the then issued ordinary
share capital of the Company (or otherwise pursuant to other
provisions of the Takeovers Code_ and trigger a mandatory
general offer obligation under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code
on the part of the holder(s) of the CPS-II.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, share options of
2,500,000 and 35,160,000 were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$0.50 and HK$0.68 per share respectively. The
total cash consideration of the issuance 37,660,000 shares
were approximately HK$25,159,000 and approximately
HK$7,541,000 was transferred from the share option reserve
to share capital and share premium upon the exercise of the
share options.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.
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17. & — &

B &

(a)

BERSERZERO -BERFAEA
AREREZBEREEABEBZRE
beoh - BRRSAABREBRZIZE
REBRRESEANELRERLADF
TER-BRREENSEE THESR
75 Al T LA R

R-ZZE—-MNFE=HA=+—H " 3,900,000
7 £ Th 1% B8 AR RE B 4T {5 M I AR BT 3
TRER ZEEBERER-_Z—HEN
BlR% -BHEZE-_T-—HF=HA=+—H
TFEE SIS\ EmABRECETHE-

REZE-—AF-ANB -AAFERZ
ZE-=F+ATHEBRETZELER
(AR EER=EFEAA (TAHRRK
BER=FAAL BBBURR ([EEE
BRI ZAERT BB - A AR R AR KRE
ER=-FEAREMBRATRRELR=
Z GRSz — B R AR R E LR
“ERAEATRETRRELR -T2
SRBEBRETERERBITZABRKRME
BARHEARK REZ-—BTBALE
FEZROHEERA DD ERERTE
BRI Z230%3k A £ (S0 4R % Uk B8 <7
BIHMEX 2 A2t RS AR
BER-FA ABEWETRISE261RE
TzREHMEZERBESREE AHAR
BrRBETBRRELR=-

RBE-Z—A"F=A=1+—HLEE
A+ 2,500,00013 % 35,160,000 5 B &
2 B3z PR0.505 T & 0.687E T 2 R B
B 1T fF - 2 1737,660,0008% i% {2 2 42
WL A EHN AH25,159,00058 7T MR B
JRFRERETEE » #97,541,0005 7T F B8 AR
EREERERARBR D RE-

FRABRTZAEROES T EYEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

18. RESERVES

(a)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the aggregate net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group
reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the

Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

As at 31 March 2014, 3,900,000 post-listing share
options have been exercised to which ordinary shares
have not been allotted. Those ordinary shares were
allotted in April 2014.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Company
had no distributable reserves (including share premium,
capital reserve and retained profits/(accumulated loss)).
Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of
the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend the Company is able to pay its debt as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
dividends shall be distributed out of the retained profits

or other reserves, including the share premium account

and capital reserve of the Company.

18. &%

(a)

KRB ZHABRBEADARER
TEE-FCEBEAMRBZH
BRAZREEFERADAMK
BROzZROzEEmMER2ZE
e

R-ZE-MNE=Z/F=+—H"
3,900,00013 L& BRECETHE
M AERBERR ZEEER
ER-E-—NFENAEE-

BHE-ZE-FF=A=+—HLHF
B AARBEAHESIREE (B
B EE EXRERREERN
(REtER)) REFEFELA
E(RIERT) 228 A QR 24
BERRARMAMARRT a0 EpE
DRBIREEBEATERNEER
REEEXKBRETIHZES 8
AT 2 A7 aE IR 7] LA R sk A
BEHFRXIRMAFRE-RIEARADF
ZHEBERMA REEBARATF
REBEFRH b REE (BERGE
BRRERGEE) BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

19. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY
As at 31 March 2016

19. ERFZHBRAR

R-E—R$E=ZA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XEFE —E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET T8t
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries i RNGI P  F 279,703 279,703
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BERZE 12 =
279,715 279,703
Current assets nBEE
Prepayments and deposits FENREREZRE 382 397
Derivative financial instruments TTEEMIT A 301 284
Cash and cash equivalents RehBESEEEH 15,905 3,474
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W BB A =] FRIE 60,268 61,692
76,856 65,847
Total assets HE#E 356,571 345,550
EQUITY #2
Capital and reserves BERGEME
Share capital i@ 17,978 17,601
Reserves 1 (26,989) (38,870)
Equity attributable to owners of FAFEEARGES
the Company (9,011) (21,269)
LIABILITIES &fR"
Current liabilities nE AR
Accruals and other payables FEstE AR EMESFIE 1,109 4,090
Amounts due to subsidiaries B R ARE 284,180 284,228
285,289 288,318
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

19. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 19. AT HBERAR—1E
THE COMPANY - continued

As at 31 March 2016 R-E—XRE=ZHA=+—H
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THExT

Non-current liabilities ERBAR

Convertible note R EE 5,911 5,432
Promissory note AN 74,104 72,712
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE 278 357
80,293 78,501
Total liabilities -Rig ki 365,582 366,819
Total equity and liabilities EERRARER 356,571 345,550
Net current liabilities mDAEESHE (208,433) (222,471)
Total assets less current liabilities HERERTDAR 71,282 57,232

The financial statements were approved and authorised for HERRRAZE—A"ENATHHES=H
issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June 2016 and signed ERERENE THTIHIESRAKREE:
on its behalf by:

Jiang Tao Yung Ka Chun EE EE
Director Director %= BAmE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

20. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

20. XA TR

(Accumulated

Share-based losses)/
Share Capital payment  Contributed  Convertible retained
premium reserve reserve surplus  note reserve profits Total
Uk e
ERZ THRER (RHER)/
BinigfE G R BARR 1] RERTF #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEn T TR TR TiEx TEL
As at 1 April 2014 RZE-MEMA-AR 316,969 295,610 15,645 1,452 2,537 42,084 674,297
Exercise of share options TEERE 1,969 = (58) = = = 1,911
Lapse of share options BREAX = = (15,399) = = 15,399 =
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (715,078) (715,078)
As at 31 March 2015 and WZB-AF=ZA=1+-AK
1 April 2015 —Z-5EMA-A 318,938 295,610 188 1,452 2,537 (657,595) (38,870)
Equity-settled share-based payments UERZEL SRHD A
ER 2R - - 19,376 - - - 19,376
Exercise of share options TEBRE 32,323 - (7,541) - - = 24,782
Loss for the year rEERSR = = = = = (32,277) (32,277)
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=RA=+-H 351,261 295,610 12,023 1,452 2,537 (689,872) (26,989)
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. RS R H M FERIR
2016 2015
ZEB-XE C—E-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 182,448 189,619
Bills payable BN EE 16,308 18,697
Receipts in advance FE W FRIE 18,989 17,410
Accruals and other payables EETER R EMENSFIE 54,026 61,623
271,771 287,349

172 HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. RERAMEFARRT - &
- continued
Included in the accruals and other payables as at 31 R-ZE-—RF=A=+—HZEFER
March 2016 were deposits received from customers of REMEMREEEERE P MR Z &
approximately HK$17,986,000 (2015: approximately ©#%17,986,0008 T (ZFE—HF 4
HK$13,887,000). 13,887,000 T ) °
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BEZENREZRRIMAT :
2016 2015
—E—REFE —E—FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
0 to 90 days 0£90H 116,071 123,096
91 to 180 days 91£180H 32,770 25,230
181 to 365 days 181£365H 13,274 14,510
Over 365 days HiB365H 20,333 26,783
182,448 189,619
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is in BEETEMZTFHEEHAN F30R
range from 30 to 90 days. £90H °
The bills payable will be matured within six months from the FESEIER IR E HREESE A A EIE -
end of the reporting period. The bills payable were secured EAEEUE TERFRITERERIK
by certain pledged bank deposits. All the bills payable are H-FBERNEBEHUARBEE-

denominated in RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

22. BANK BORROWINGS 22. BITER

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-0fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Bank borrowings — secured IRITIEE —HIKH
(Notes (a) and (b)) (KtzE@) K (b)) 50,395 121,454
2016 2015
“B—RE¥ “E-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET

Carrying amount repayable: FEEERMESHE:

Within one year shown under —FR FARBDERE

current liabilities 50,395 121,454

Notes:

As at 31 March 2016, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$35,997,000 (2015: approximately
HK$121,454,000) carries variable interest rate ranging from
4.30% to 5.66% (2015: 7.28% to 9.00%) per annum.

And as at 31 March 2016, secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$14,398,000 carries fixed interest rate at
6.42% per annum.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the secured bank borrowings
were secured by certain bank deposits, prepaid lease
payments, investment property (Note 36), and corporate
guarantee by inter-group company.

The carrying amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are all
denominated in RMB.
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R-ZTE-—XRE=ZA=+-—H BEHF
$R1TE E#435,997,0008 T (=ZE—H
& #9121,454,0005% 7T ) J3 AN F4.30
EZE566E (ZZ—HF :7.28EF9.00
B)ZagERRGTE -

MAR-ZE—-—A~"E=ZA=+—H BEH
$R1TfE & 4914,398,00058 7T J5 LA6.42 /8
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of HK$157,300,000,
of which HK$33,000,000 was satisfied by the issue of
convertible note (the “Convertible Note”). The Convertible
Note initially matures at the second anniversary of the issue
date. On 8 May 2009, the maturity date of Convertible
Note was extended from 8 May 2009 to 9 May 2017. The

conversion share price was HK$1.90.

The Convertible Note contains three components,
redemption option, liability and equity elements. The
equity element is presented in equity heading “Convertible
notes reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability

component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible notes reserve.

23.

24.

FEf R R Z R IF

FAHFERERZRERBERN RER
AREREE-

CIE: Y& 3

A—ETLFHEANA AEBUKRE
157,300,000 T WIBE S 2 HERTR
78> R {E 33,000,000 T 2 BB 34T H]
BRERERE (TAIRREE]) XF-mR
EERBITARERMBFE YRR
RZZZAFEREANA TEREE
HECH-_ZEZSAFHEANBEEZC
Z—t+tHFHANB -BBREH1.90E T

JHREEAEBEDEREE SERER
Mo o-ERMBoRERKR TRRRE
RBIET2Y BENRIZ2EBFNERS
10.97E °

BEBI 2 ATEDASEETRRE
%> HIBRIENE AR E AR NS
BHZEE PHATRREBHEZR
RAEHA-
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GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued
The Convertible Note which issued on 9 May 2007 (the
“Convertible Note |”) recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position was calculated as follows:

24, MR RIE 1B

RESHBERRRER IR -BBLF
FRANBRTZARKRER ([TRKRE
B ZstEWT:

HK$’000
F#& T

Fair value of Convertible Note | issued RZEZS+FRANBETZ
on 9 May 2007 ABBEREE—2A¥E 54,750
Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 514
Equity component EmID (25,125)

Liability component on initial recognition and ~ HMFEREZEEIRS X

amortised cost at 9 May 2007 RZZBZLFRANB ZEERAR 30,139
Amortised cost as at 1 April 2014 R-Z—NFMA— B Z#BHAA 5,012
Interest expense FERZ 550
Interest payable EARE (130)

Amortised cost as at 31 March 2015 and RZE—RE=HA=+—HK
1 April 2015 “E-AFMNB-—HZHEERAE 5,432
Interest expense FEREX 609
Interest payable ERFE (130)

As at 31 March 2016 W-—ZE—XE=A=+—H 5,911

As at 31 March 2016, the outstanding principal amount
of the Convertible Note | was HK$6,500,000 (2015:
HK$6,500,000).

Interest expense on the Convertible Note | is calculated

using the effective interest method by applying the effective

interest rate of 10.97% to the liability component.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued

The Convertible Note issued on 1 June 2015 (the
“Convertible Note I1”), the maturity date of Convertible Note
Il was from 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2017. The conversion
share price was HK$0.65.

The Convertible Note Il contains two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity element is presented in

equity heading “Convertible notes reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible notes reserve.

The Convertible Note Il recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position was calculated as follows:

24, MR RIE — 4B

ATRBREE_-—R=-Z—HF~A—HBH#%
TTEREE=]) TREREE -2
AMEH=_FE-—HFEAA—HBE=_Z—+
FRAA=+—H - #RER0ESEBITe

JHREEE-_SEREREEWMARD - #
mEoRERRTRRZBEHFEIET

RERIZAFEDAEEFRTRKRE
HZ2mBENRTE -NBRESE/AERER
Mo 2 BE DB ATRREEHE 2R
RIEZA -

REEHBRRRERS TRRESE=
ZEEMT

HK$'000
TET
Fair value of Convertible Note Il issued RZE—HE B —BH®T
on 1 June 2015 ZHBREE - ZNFE 84,292
Equity component EmED (9,866)
Liability component on initial recognition and LT EREHEZEEFIRA=-Z—HF
amortised cost as at 1 June 2015 ~NA—HZEHERAR 74,426
Amortised cost as at 1 April 2015 R-Z—HFMA—HZBHAAR =
Issue of Convertible Note |l BITABEREE - 74,426
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BOUBRKREE _EHRS KA
Convertible Note Il (1,825)
Interest expense FMER X 8,277
Interest payable EARIE (3,611)
As at 31 March 2016 BR-E—REF=A=+—H 77,267

EEEBEEEAERLH

2015/2016 3% 177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES - continued 24. MR E 18
As at 31 March 2016, the outstanding principal amount of RZBE—RE=A=1+—H "WEREE
the Convertible Note Il was HK$84,292,000 (2015: Nil). —ZEREEREE5H84,292,0005% T

(ZB2—RF:THBRx)-

Interest expense on the Convertible Note Il is calculated AR EE —2FERAZTIERAERF
using the effective interest method by applying the effective EERBEEN D 2BRAME13.11E
interest rate of 13.11% to the liability component. Ho
25. PROMISSORY NOTE 25. ZERR
On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory RIEBE—ZSFE=A\B XD ABRTEE
note (the “Promissory Note”) in a principal amount of £6290,000,0008 TR —ZE—FF =
HK$290,000,000 due on 7 March 2020. The Promissory BtBHBEMzE&RERE ([RAEE]) -
Note was issued for acquiring the entire issued share capital AREEDARBEREERARZRE
of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1% per annum, BAORAMBIT BREMNEI1EFE > 8%
payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective interest rate is FRE—IR - BEFERIE-
3%.
HK$’000
T T
As at 1 April 2014 R-Z—MNFMA—H 71,361
Interest expense MEFEX 2,151
Interest payable PR E (800)
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=ZZ-HF=A=+—HERK
—E-HFMAB—H 72,712
Interest expense FEF X 2,192
Interest payable EARE (800)
As at 31 March 2016 BR-E—XRE=A=+—H 74,104
During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, none of REBE-ZE—R"ER-Z—HF=AH
the Promissory Note were early redeemed by the Company. =+ —HIEFE  NAQF) M ERE R B E &
HERK-
As at 31 March 2016, the outstanding principal of R-ZE-—RE=ZA=+—HB AAEEZ
the Promissory Note was HK$80,000,000 (2015: i AR EE AR £ EE580,000,0008 T (=&
HK$80,000,000). — F £ 180,000,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

26. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The followings are the major deferred tax balances
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior year:

26. RIEMIE A ®

UTpAFERBEFERRZ TEE
EREGHRAT 22D

Deferred tax liabilities: BEERBEEE:
Convertible
notes
CIE: Y38
HK$'000
FHET
As at 1 April 2014 R-ZE—NFENA—H 426
Credited to profit or loss (Note 33) s AEBE (MIEE33) (69)
As at 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZEBE-—AF=A=1+—80K
—ZE-HFMAB—H 357
Issuance of Convertible Note BT IR E AR 1,929
Credited to profit or loss (Note 33) A (MEE33) (1,445)
As at 31 March 2016

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised
tax losses of approximately HK$41,695,000 (2015:
HK$39,868,000) available to set off against future assessable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams of the subsidiaries which incurred the
tax losses. These tax losses in Hong Kong may be carried
forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC may be expired

within five years.

W-—ZE—X"E£=BA=+—H 841

REBEHR REFBZABARBEEERY
41,695,000/ 5t (=& —H & : 39,868,000
BIT) A AEIRSE R R ERBURR - R
EEBBEE KB A 8 Z R HRiEF R
RERER MR R AR KR EE
RELRIEEE -ZEBBHBERAE
PREAZERPERBEBETEREER
FE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 20 April 2002, the Company may grant
options at HK$1 per offer to any director, employee, any
supplier of goods or services, any customer, any person or
entity that provides research, development or other technical
support or any shareholder of the Group or any investee or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the post-listing share option scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time. No participant shall be granted an option,
if exercise in full, would result in the total number of shares
already issued under all the options granted to him or her
that are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total number
of shares in issue. The exercise price of the share will be
determined at the higher of the average of closing prices of
the shares on the Stock Exchange on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; and the nominal value of the shares. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years

from the date of grant.

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

27. FERR gt B

T i A AR 4R
READAR-ZZT-_FMA-THEK
e EmRBRETE NQF A UEE
REBREZZWINEBTZABRAE
BEAES -EE - EAERIBBEHLE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued

The Company also adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 10 August 2011,
the Company may grant options not less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; (2) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (3) the nominal value
of the share on the date of grant to any employee of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries including any executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, and any suppliers, consultants, agents and
advisers or any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group.
The total numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the relevant class of shares in issue from time to time.
No options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
if this will result in this limit being exceeded. Any grant of
options to a connected person (including but not limited
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder)
or its associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the options). No
participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in full,
would result in the total number of share issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to him or her
that for the time being subsisting and unexercised in any
12-month period would exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue. The share options are exercisable for a period
not later than 10 years from the date of grant but subject to

the early termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

27. iRRR Rt B4R

kR — &
RARTFR=ZZB——FN\B T BEAH
FBRESHE (THBRETE]) - AQF
A B A A B 2 H AR A B D Rz R
B EEARAHEFEMAHBLAR 2
ABMATRIFEMITES  REMHEESD B
B -REREAAREZSZ2RBERS
HAEEBELARELHEMZEFTA
T RUEBRE ETEETSERTS
FHEREE  ()EXAEHRERAMRER
PRELBH (AREXR) 2WWE;
QEXFERRERFABERDREER
HEMATREEEER 2 FPUHE: KQ3)
R WXL BH 2 E(E - BT EREHE
PRAERT B I A 1 BE A H A B IR #E =T &
R ARITER A BREM A&7
HRDAH  TEBBENKEBERC®
TIRIDE30% - HEHBTESERL £
PRYUEE - B AT AR 1557 B8 IR AE AT Bl A
REEMEMBRESEREBRE - @
BEAL (BREEFRRES  EBTH
AEBHEBRRR) REBHBALREEM
BRE HEARGEVFHTES (IE
RERBRERRANETMBELIFEHNT
B )ME-EASEEHETSERBER
i BRBITER  SERREM+ =@
AHBERTEEERNBERE (ERER
RABTEE)MESRTRETFRTHR
NRBEBCHITROLIN1% - BR
BURTERBRE R HPE10F 25
BT TE AR RERILHBRE
aHEIFTARRR o
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued
Details of the movements in the number of share options

during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

27. Rk MRt B -8

kR — &
FABREZHEZHFENT

BEENE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Llapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price Exercise
Type of Participants 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016 grant per share period
RIS-1% RIB-R%
2a% HA-A 3 M R "  ZRZt-H 14
B RFTHE fH fifE HH b3 RATE HHAY fifER fiEs
Directors
{3
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Resigned as the 1,700,000 - (1,700,000) - - - 30 March 2009 HK$0.50 30 September 2009 to
Company executive director 29 March 2019
on 20 April 2015)
SESLE (W=B-1F “EENE 0508 ZEEAFAA=TAE
BAZtBRERDFHTES) ZA=1H “E-hE=f=thE
Mr. Zheng Gang - 7,350,000 (2,940,000 - - 4,410,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
BREE ZZ-1f 0687 —B-AEMATNRE
WA +A “E-\EMAttA
Dr. Jiang Tao 800,000 - (800,000) - - - 30 March 2009 HK$0.50 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
ERft “EENE 05087 —EEAFAAZTAE
ZR=tH ZE-NFZAZtNE
- 7,350,000 (2,940,000) - - 4,410,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
ZZ-1f 068%%n =B-AEMATNRE
WA +A “E-\EMAttA
Dr. Huang Jiaging - 7,000,000 (2,800,000) - - 4,200,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
EMEEE “Z-1f 06887 =B-ZEMATNAZE
mA+AR “Z-\EMAtLR
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 27. BB #E a8 — 4R
Post-listing share options - continued Tk -
Number of share options
BkENA
Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price Exercise
Type of Participants 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016 grant per share period
RIS-1% RIB-REF
$HZE mA-A R R 3 " ZBZt-H -1
b RFTE R fifE HH# b3 BFTE RHAM fiEm s
Mr. Yung Ka Chun (appointed as the - 6,600,000 (2,640,000) - - 3,960,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
Company executive director 17 April 2018
on 20 April 2015)
SEELE(W=2-1F ZE-1f 068%%T =B-RFMATNAE
M=t BEZEAKAAUTES) mA+7xA “Z-\EMAttR
Mr. Wong Yu Man, James - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
IHR%EE “Z-1f% 0.68%% —B-REMATNAZ
WA +A “Z-\EMAtLR
Mr. Tang Xun - 3,000,000 = = = 3,000,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
BHEE ZE-1F 0681 —E-REMA+ARE
MA+AH “Z-\EMAttR
Employees 459,739 - - = - 459,739 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
B8 ZEERE 361%n “BEAFLATZAZE
tA+=A “Z-XEtATZR
1,042,253 - - - - 1,042,253 21 Mar 2007 HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
“23tE 2948n “EBtE=B=t+-HEZ
ZH=t-H ZE-tFZA=tH
450,000 - - - - 450,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.50 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
“E2ENE 050BL —BEAFAB=tREZ
ZA=tH ZE-AEZA-thA
- 67,700,000  (23,840,000) (200,000) - 43,660,000 16 April 2015 HK$0.68 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2018
ZE-1% 06881 —E-REMAtNAE
mA+7xA “Z-\EMAttA
4,451,992 100,000,000  (37,660,000) (200,000) = 66,591,992
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.16 HK$0.68 HK$0.67 HK$0.68 - HK$0.73
NETHGEE 11687 0.68% % 0.67#7% 0.68% 7 - 0.73%7%
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

27. MRk 1R B —4&

Post-listing share options - continued L % Rl B 4 — 1
Number of share options
BREZE
QOutstanding Granted ‘Exercised  Adjustment Lapsed Qutstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during at 31 March Date of price Exercise
Type of participants 2014 the year the year the year the year 2015 grant per share period
R-Z2-BF RZE-1F
S8% mA-H R ER R £l =ZA=t-A =13
E5 AR B e #E b3 HARTR BB e TS
Directors
g2
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
SEREE “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAEZ
ZA=1H ZE-hWFZAZtAE
Mr. Zheng Gang 2,814,084 - - - (2,814,084) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
BEEE “2-2f 11288 —F-BFZA=1ZHZ
=Bt+IH “2-RF=f=tZH
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 2,084,507 = = = (2,084,507) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Rel s —2-%f% 11288 “E-ZFZf=+ZRE
=AtIA “E-RF=f=1zH
Dr. Jiang Tao 800,000 - - - - 800,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
EREL ZEENE 05%n —BEAFAAZTRE
ZB=1H ZE-AEZAZTAA
1,563,380 = = = (1,563,380) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
—2-%f% 11288 Z3-BF=A-1=A%
=AtIA “E-RF=f=1zH
Dr. Huang Jiaging 312,676 - - - (312,676) - 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
EMERE “2-%f% 11288 —F-BFZA=1ZHZ
ZBtNR ZE-REZf-1CR
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. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued 27. WEBxHEat B — 4R
Post-listing share options - continued Tk -
Number of share options
BREZE
QOutstanding Granted ‘Exercised  Adjustment Lapsed Qutstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during at 31 March Date of price Exercise
Type of participants 2014 the year the year the year the year 2015 grant per share period
RZZ-MF RZE-1F
28% mA-H By ER R Fh  =A=t-H =13
£ AR B i #E b3 HARTR BB e frfes
Employees 459,739 - - = - 459,739 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
&8 Z2ERE 3618 —BREAFLATZAZE
tA+=A “Z-XEtAtZR
1,042,253 - - - - 1,042,253 21 Mar 2007 HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
“E3tE 29487 “EELEZAZT-HE
=A=t-H “Z-t5Zh=+H
450,000 - - = - 450,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
“E2ENE 05%% ZBEAEABZTHE
=A=tH ZE-AEZA=thA
21,574,648 = = - (21,574,648) = 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
—2-%f 11288 “E-ZF=A=+ZHZE
=AtIA “E-RFZA-tZH
32,801,287 = = - (28,349,295 4,451,992
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.49 - HK$0.19 - HK$0.50 HK$1.16
NETHTEE 0497 0.19%5% 0.50%7 11687
The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March 2016 R-ZE-—RF=A=+—HHEHRITEZ
had weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.97 tHEBREZMETLIIRERS DR
(2015: 3.24) years. B297TE(ZE—HF:324%F) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued

Notes:

(i)

(i)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options granted
as an expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income when they were granted
with a corresponding increase being recognised in share-
based payment reserve. The employee share-based payment
reserve is transferred to share capital and share premium,
together with the exercise price, when the option holder
exercises its rights. As a transitional provision, the cost of
share option granted after 7 November 2002 and had not
yet vested on 1 January 2005 were expensed retrospectively
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the respective periods. During the
year ended 31 March 2016, HK$19,376,000 (2015: nil) share-
based payment expenses were recognised.

The estimated fair value of each option granted on 13 July
2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30 March 2009, 18
March 2010, 30 December 2011 and 16 April 2015 are
approximately HK$0.226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384, range from
HK$0.012 to HK$0.021, range from HK$0.036 to HK$0.062,
HK$0.0058 and range from HK$0.197 to HK$0.280
respectively.
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BRe-MRBE-—Z—<"F=A=+—HL
FEZ#:819,376,0008 L (=ZE—F
FE)UBDAERSRZEX -

R-ZEBERFLA+T=H ZZEXRF
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(iii)

(iv)

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Option
Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

27. iRRR Rt B4R

LR — iR
MisE: — &

(iii)

NFEDU-BAXBEEERAFTE-
HZEXBWAZERNT

Share option grant date

HRERHAH
13 July 24 July 21 March 30 March 18 March 30 December 16 April
2006 2006 2007 2009 2010 2011 2015
ZEBRE ZEBRE ZB3tE ZEEhE P-2F -5 Z2-1f
Date of grant BHAH tA+=A +tA-+mMA Z=A=+-H ZRA=+H ZAt+NB +ZA=tH mA+*<A
Stock asset price HK$0.83 HK$0.82 HK$0.51 HK$0.03 HK$0.098 HK$0.128 HK$0.63
RHEEE 0835 0.82%7 05157 0.03%7 0.098% 7 0.128%7 06357
Exercise price HK$0.627 HK$0.62 HK$0.51 HK$0.05 HK$0.117 HK$0.160 HK$0.68
ieE 0.627% 7 06257 05157 0.05% 7 0.117%7 0.160% 7 0.68% 7T
Expected volatility 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53% 53.02% 71.54%
RERE
Risk-free rate 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68% 0.25% 0.66%
ERBREXE
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
EHREEH

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily
prices over the one year immediately preceding the grant
date. The above calculation is based on the assumption that
there is no material difference between the expected volatility
over the whole life of the options and the historical volatility
of the shares set out as above.

Because the Binomial Option Pricing Model requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price, changes in subjective input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.

As at 31 March 2016, 66,591,992 (2015: 4,451,992) share
options are exercisable.

(iv)

ERHREL R 2 BERETEZRE
DRBESEERHAMA—F 28 HERK
BRI LRFAEDRERBRES
RHA A 2 7R B R i B2 _E i B 8 2 AR 40 R
SRR 2 ZEWIFFERBMEK

MR- EANREERARESEEE
2B BERGEREZEE AEBE
R2RDTHEAYEATENMET -

R-ZEBE-—ARE=A=+—-—HB HF17
2 BREHE 566,591,99213 (==
— A 14,451,99213) ©
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27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(v)

(vi)

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, the

share options granted on 30 March 2009 are exercisable in

the following manner:

(a)

up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30 September
2009 to 30 March 2010;

up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 31 March 2010
to 30 March 2011; and

all the remaining 30% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 31 March
2011 to 30 March 2013, and in each case, not later
than 29 March 2019.

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, the

share options granted on 18 March 2011 are exercisable in

the following manner:

(a)

up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2010
to 22 March 2011;

up to further 20% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2011
to 22 March 2012;
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27. Rk MRt B -8
EHh&mEE &

MizE: —4&

(v)

(vi)

REUROEBERZHEZGT R=F
ZENE=ZA=1THERHNBERETIZL
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(vi)

(vii)

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, the
share options granted on 18 March 2011 are exercisable in
the following manner: — continued

() up to further 20% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March 2012
to 22 March 2013; and

(d) all the remaining 20% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2013 to 22 March 2014, and in each case, not later
than 22 March 2015.

In accordance with the terms of share based arrangement, the
share options granted on 16 April 2015 are exercisable in the

following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 18 April 2015 to
17 April 2016;

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 18 April 2016 to
17 April 2017; and

(¢)  all the remaining 30% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 18 April
2017 to 17 April 2018 and in each case, not later than
17 April 2018.

27. iRRR Rt B4R

Lk BB — iR
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(vi)

(vii)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

28. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER
GAIN, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net invoiced value
received and receivable from third parties in connection with
the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
products, provision of general hospital services and healthcare
and hospital management services, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts. An analysis of the Group's
revenue, other revenue and other gain, net is as follows:

28. Ih - Htlr R R E il & - B

#

KEERTERMBERDIEEYUARIR
HEEHERREREEREREER
BEWREKE= A FREEEAHE
(MKREEREZITNE) - AEBEZU
wmoHMREREMKE FEZ2SAO
T

2016 2015
—E-R¥ —E-8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F& T
Revenue: W
Retail of pharmaceutical and BYIRMEBERTE
related products 238,422 220,762
Wholesale and distribution of BYIREEERMERDH
pharmaceutical and related products 1,083,341 1,345,507
Provision of general hospital services R RS M BB RIS 252,844 214,040
1,574,607 1,780,309
Other revenue: Hfhr & -
Bank interest income RTRE WA 342 1,529
Loan interest income E A B WA 864 2,610
Rental income HEUWA 2,289 2,511
Exhibition income REUWA - 1
Sundry income LN 4,098 2,851
7,593 9,502
Other gain, net: Hfhir - B8 -
Exchange gain (& 5, U 2 2,688 6
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HENE BMERSEEZ (BE)
plant and equipment U &= (551) 4
Change in fair value of derivative TEEemMIAZ AR EEZE
financial instruments 17 (100)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in FLiE 3 Rk EiLEIN R IBRER 2
respect of trade and other receivables REEERE 910 818
Change in fair value of investment RENEATFERZH
property (490) (252)
2,574 476
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

29. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:

29. BEEBEEFER

REXBBRNDEHRTIIRE RER:

2016 2015
—B—-RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#T FET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 30) EEME (FFEE30) 11,659 4,210
Other staff’s retirement benefits Hh & T 2R IAKEMFH S
scheme contributions 17,233 12,185
Other staff costs Hib& T RA 132,011 102,681
Other staff share-based payment HETURMDAERE ZAREX
expenses 12,423 -
173,326 119,076
Auditors’ remuneration B AN B &
— audit services — B 5 R 1,636 1,300
- non-audit services — EEST R 336 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FE SR EAMEWRIBRER Z
trade and other receivables WEEE 5,595 B S
Cost of inventories sold EEFERA 1,240,496 1,459,734
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F& 43 %8 & =i & # 84 1,405 1,257
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZEINE
equipment
— owned by the Group -HAREEER 18,679 14,678
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE - 785,169
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—BERBLRZEE
(Note 12) (B=E12) 772 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of BT HREFCREHERS
land and buildings 43,739 35,987

Z=EREEEARAT 2015/2016 £ 191
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

30. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration of every director for the years ended 31
March 2016 and 2015 are set out below:

30.

EEHe
EEERBE-E-—AFER-F-5F
ZAZtH-ALEFEZHFHMBERRIID

T
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees other benefits contributions Sub-total payment expenses Total
ek BHRF HRiEERZ
fig H iR HERR it fREX #it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-R% ZB-1fF ZB-AF ZB-0F ZB-RF “T-RF Z8-NF %-1F Z¥-AF ZB-1F ZB-XF “B-IF
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET FER TiER FiEx TER ThR TET TET TET TET
Executive directors
Yung Kwok Leong

(resigned on 20 April 2015) T - - 40 720 2 18 2 738 - - Y] 738
Chen Jin Shan (resigned on ~ BR& 1L (R=E—-m&

10 October 2014) TATARE) - - - )] - - - 32 - - - 32
Jiang Tao gz - = 1,690 1,560 18 5 1,708 1,565 1,641 - 3,349 1,565
Zheng Gang ) - = 1,807 1,366 18 18 1,825 1,384 1,641 - 3,466 1,384
Huang Jiaging EmE - - 120 120 - - 120 120 1,563 - 1,683 120
Yung Ka Chun (appointed ~ $EE (R=F-1FN

on 20 April 2015) A=tREZf) - - 568 - 18 - 586 - 1,215 = 1,801 =

- - 4,225 3,798 56 41 4,281 3,839 6,060 - 10,341 3,839
Non-executive directors ~ FH{TEE
Wong Yu Man, James IHRE - = 120 120 6 6 126 126 223 - 349 126
Tang Xun (appointed on BH(R-Z-1F
10 March 2015) ZATREZE) - = 59 5 - - 59 5 670 - 729 5
- - 179 125 6 6 185 131 893 - 1,078 131
Independent non- BUFHTES

executive directors
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne ERE 120 120 - - - - 120 120 - - 120 120
Hu Shanlian HEH 60 60 - - - - 60 60 - - 60 60
Lu Chuanzhen REE 60 60 - - - N 60 60 - - 60 60

240 240 - - - - 240 240 - - 240 240
240 240 4,404 3,923 62 47 4,706 4,210 6,953 - 11,659 4,210

During the years ended 31 March 2016, Mr. Jiang Tao, the
executive director of the Company was appointed as chief
executive officer of the Company.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or chief executive officer as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors or chief executive officer has
waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year (2015: Nil).

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015/2016

R ARBZATESEESLERZES
RABZITHAHE -

REFE AEELTEHESRTRAR
XA £ LA 51 H hn B8 AN £ B =R 4E 53 i
BROABBHE - MEESIITHE
BRAFERREAMS (Z2—HF:
) o

7
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GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

31. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 31. EREN £
Senior management emoluments and five highest BEREEARHMERIEREHFER
paid employees
The five highest paid individuals during the year included FREE&aHEABRENE (Z2—1
four (2015: three) directors. Details of whose remuneration F ZR)ES-HEZ2MESFBEHRAEG
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial B BHRERMEE30
statements.
For the year ended 31 March 2016, the details of the BE-_ZT—~"F=A=1+—HILLFE &
remuneration of the remaining one (2015: two) non- T—RB(ZE—H1F MB)IEFZH
directors, highest paid employees are as follows: SHEEZHMESFBNT

2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE—-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Basic salaries and allowances BEAREHE NIERL 1,413 1,310
Retirement benefits scheme RKTE FI ST B ALK
contributions - 3
1,413 1,348
The number of these non-director, highest paid employees MeBRTIHEHBZZESHESZ2HR
whose remuneration fell within the following band is as FEE A
follows:
2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-—AF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T - P,
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,000% JT 1 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

31. EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS - continued 31. EEM& — &

The emoluments of the senior management (excluding KAAFZEREBAE (TEBEESR) 2
directors) of the Company are within the following band. & BR T S EE -
2016 2015
—E—-RE —ZE-IF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £1,500,0007 J© 1 =
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to REAFE AEFTERSHEEASN
the senior management or the five highest paid individuals hEESHALT NS UKS|I H NE
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as REBREAMBRES R BBEE-

compensation for loss of office.

None of the senior management or the five highest BESHREBEAERIERSFHALTR
paid individuals has waived or has agreed to waive any AEEEHRESIREREZEAME (==

emoluments during the year (2015: Nil). —HF &)

32. FINANCE COSTS 32. ¥ RHA
2016 2015
—B—-RF —ZE-HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
Interest on: LTIEAZAE:

— bank borrowings —RITIBEE 8,386 8,819
— convertible notes —ABRRZEE 8,886 550
— promissory note — AR 2,192 2,151
19,464 11,520
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

33. TAXATION 33. RIA
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on AEENRERBRBAEBHNEARME
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which FREREREELERNFEEZ A AERE
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. Provision ZnFBHEEBMFEH - HitibE 2 &
on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated at the A RANBEDRENEEEL MR
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group R2BREEG REREAIZREMRITH
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and Rit&e
practices in respect thereof.
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Current tax: BN AR 1A
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R ERERH 5,387 10,736
— Under-provision in prior year - FEBETE - 122
Deferred tax: EFERIE
— Current year credit (Note 26) - REEER (MizE26) (1,445) (69)
3,942 10,789
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

33. TAXATION - continued

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in

which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the

33. R4

tax expense at the effective tax rate are as follows: BRANT -

BAR AR EWE D 7 B8R A E AR
EBRGFEERARGRBABENAEH
X ERERRETENRAERNY

2016 2015
—E—-RE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Loss before taxation BREL A& B (41,154) (771,395)
Notional tax on profit before tax, BERREERE S EEE R Z
calculated at the rates applicable BEAEZ2BRBADRER 2
to profits in the tax jurisdiction EHEMIEA
concerned (6,838) (124,407)
Tax effect of expenses and income not AR BEEFH IR
deductible or taxable for tax purposes WA BB E 7,061 131,316
Under-provision in prior year F—FEREBETE - 122
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTRBEEBE 2B EEE 3,719 3,758
Taxation I8 3,942 10,789
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

33. TAXATION - continued

The National People’s Congress which was concluded on
16 March 2007, the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law was
approved and became effective from 1 January 2008. The
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law introduces a wide range of
changes which include, but are not limited to, the unification
of the income tax rates for domestic-invested and foreign-

invested enterprises at 25%.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onwards to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015. No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made as the Group did not have assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax (2015: Nil).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin

Islands.

33. R4

RZEZELF=ZA+AHERNZEA
RRRARE FECEMESHRLIERSB
WH-IZENF-—F—AREN - FED
EMBHESIA—RINE  BEFEETR
REBEBRRERNMECENAESHRESR
—525% °

REFEEERERE BT N\F -
A—RE BERERERINAFTE=
EENFEFERMAOENFEEN
REH RSB 10%WTFEMFTSH - HR
EEBEMALEFAEZEFELAE
DR REHNREE  BERSHNWER
BRE -ARAKEETENHELRHDHA
—HEEBEMALNREEZRAGE
BER A SEIZS %N EEH RN
BIE e N ARE BB ZF B e T =
FEAVEFR - AR AT RERA ] B8 SR B
K28 MU BRZE BRI EIE 2 ERFE
BAFHIEER HE -

ERNGHEEE-_ZE—"ER=-Z—-1
F=ZRA=t—-BLFEZMEFERBEF
1916.5% =T & o Fa 70 2N 52 8 30 2R R ER 28 4
MBBNER 2ERBER - AL BT
BRHEHTRERE (ZZ—HF &)

REFEHERABELHEZRARK
ER O AEEBASMNEARERERRE
BRELESHEH
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34. LOSS PER SHARE 34. BREGIR
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KARBEEARLERERREHEE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TDREUTE8IBHE:
following data:
2016 2015
—E—R¥ —E—-8F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET FE T
Loss iR
Loss for the purpose of basic and AUt ESREARBEESIEZ
diluted loss per share Ei=]
— Loss for the year attributable to —ARATEE AEM
the owners of the Company KEEEIE (43,372) (505,581)
Number of shares B ® A No. of shares No. of shares
BirEE RHEE
‘000 ‘000
TR T8
Weighted average number of AUGTEEREREEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of EiE R MEFEE
basic loss per share
— Ordinary shares in issue —-BRTEER 1,690,471 1,186,354
— Preference shares in issue —-BRITELR 98,500 573,693
Weighted average number of RAUGTESREREEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of 3 B 0 RE S 39
basic loss per share 1,788,971 1,760,047
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

LOSS PER SHARE - continued

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, diluted loss
per share is the same as the basic loss per share as the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Convertible Note and the Company’s share
options, since their exercise would result in an anti-dilutive
effect on loss per share during the years ended 31 March
2016 and 2015.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the

34.

35.

SRBR-&

BE_Z—R"ER-Z-—HF=R=+-—
ALEE SRBSSEESRERER
HE AR EESRBEEERIERR
TEABREERAQAERE BET
FERHEZE T RFR-ZE-HF=
A=+-HLEECSREEAERE

s B/ g8
= «?4%‘°

Bz B

ARNBESTEBRNBE-ZT—RF
A=+-RBLEFEZRERE (ZF—

payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March i
2016 (2015: Nil). R
PLEDGED ASSETS 36. EEHNRE
At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were R{BEBR THEEERRTFAREZ
pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities: SRATRRE T T LA -
2016 2015
—E—-R¥ —E—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHERT
Pledged bank deposits (Note 16) EIRHIRITER (HEE16) 6,096 12,970
Prepaid lease payments (Note 7) TR ERE (MFE7) 10,623 1,909
Investment property (Note 8) REYE (HIFE8) 7,199 8,093
23,918 22,972
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group were committed to make the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
rented under non-cancellable operating leases with lease

terms from one year to ten years which fall due as follows:

37. EEHERIE

AEERBEAMA LB REF 2 A THE
RERE (A —FE2+F)ITAUT
ARKEHAESAIRKRIHA :

2016 2015

—E—REFE —E-RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FT#ET T8 T

Within one year —F R 35,030 39,054
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZHhF (BEEEWE) 79,330 69,350
Over five years BiEAF 26,711 62,417
141,071 170,821

38. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 May 2015, the Group disposed 25% equity interest
of Fuzhou Huihao by way of increasing the registered capital
of Fuzhou Huihao from RMB60,000,000 to RMB80,000,000.
The non-controlling interests of Fuzhou Huihao agreed
to pay RMB20,000,000 for the increase capital of Fuzhou
Huihao. The Group recognised an increase of non-controlling
interests and decrease in other reserve of approximately
HK$63,409,000 and HK$29,208,000 respectively. As at 31
March 2016, the outstanding balance of non-controlling
interests contribution was RMB8,670,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group further
acquired 0.51% equity interest of Huihao Sihai by way of
increasing the registered capital of RMB40,000,000 from
RMB15,856,000 to RMB55,856,000 of the capital of Huihao
Sihai.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
On 1

Management Consultancy Limited (“Fuzhou Jiahui”), an

September 2014, Fuzhou Jiahui Enterprise

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary (the “Purchaser”), entered
into the agreement with the vendors in respect of acquisition
of Zhuhai Jiulong, pursuant to which the Purchaser has
agreed to acquire (i) the Sale Capital of Fuzhou Huikang,
together with its wholly-owned subsidiary Jiulong Hospital
Company Limited (the “Target Group”) and (ii) a loan of
approximately RMB37,941,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$47,707,000). The consideration is satisfied by the
Purchaser assuming all the payment obligations and the
liabilities of the loan instead and in the place of the vendors.
Upon completion on 4 September 2014, Zhuhai Jiulong is
wholly and beneficially owned by the Group. For details,
please refer to the Company announcement dated 1
September 2014. For the year ended 31 March 2016, no any

material non-cash transactions.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,

which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required

contributions under the scheme.

39.

40.

EBREXH
R-Z-—NFAA—A —BEAEE2E
MEBAREMNEECEERZAEGRA
A(EMNEE] (BEFEEARNK
BHRESNEITLIWEHRE B - BF
EREREARBOERMNERZHEER
N ERHEZEMBARKBNAE ([B
BEE]RMHERDNAKY37,941,000
7t (& R #47,707,0005 7t) ° R E
UEFBRRRREESREERZFAE
IREEREEZF XX - RZZE—N
FAAMBRRE KENENHAEE
2EEREBE -BHAFE F2HAAA
AfA—ZS—WFAA—BZOM -RE
BTE-—ARE=ZA=t+—-HLEEER I
BEAMEAFERERG -

iR th a1 &t B
AEBAEETBAAKREER TR
MARSHE ([5H8)) B2 EER
AEEZEEARRE  FARGEARL
BB REERIEEHHRAS5%ME
AR BES R HAAEMSR -

ARRPEMNEQRZEER P EBF
EECEREERANEANTEKE A LD
AZHBENBEARRRFMEX2E T
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B - AEBBR KB E 2 —FIE
RBBEEMELEATEHR

Z=EREEmARAT 20152006 £5 201



202

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,

during the year, the Group had entered into the following

transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of

the directors, were carried out in the ordinary course of the

Group’s business:

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management
represented amount paid to the Company’s directors as

detailed in Note 30 as follows:

4. EXHEALTEZS

BREaMBRRAMHIFRAZIRER
RERIN TR AEEBEBABEALET
TIRG EFERR ZERZNEAE
BzRAEXRBBREPET:

(a)

FEEEAR
FTEEBAESFMIEXNTAAF
BEECSH (FHBHMKE30) M
T:

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—FEF

HK$°000 HK$’000

TH#T FEx

Short-term employee benefits EHIEERER 4,706 4,210
Share-based payment expenses URHAERMRZEAX 6,953 =
11,659 4,210

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the father of Mr. Yung Ka Chun
who is a substantial shareholder of ultimate holding
company, has entered into a personal guarantee
agreement on 14 March 2014 with China CITIC
Bank Corporation Limited to secure banking facilities
on behalf of the Group in an aggregate amount of
RMB10,000,000 for one and half years, and had been
settled during the year ended 31 March 2015.

On 9 January 2015, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong has entered
into of a deed of amendments with the Company for

the Proposed Alteration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 4. EXREBEALTRZ S -
TRANSACTIONS - continued
(c) During the year, the Group had the following () FR - AEFHEEEALZZZN
transactions with related parties: T
2016 2015
—EB—-R¥ —E-0F
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
REALTEE ZHHE FERT F#E T
Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Chain Rental fee paid
Company Limited (the “FHP Company”) 1,185 1,237
ERErEEEHERAR 2HEE
(MM reEsEEi|)
FHP Company Sale - 178
BEEpEEEH HE
FHP Company Purchase - 1,665
BB EEEH g
Mother of Mr. Yung Ka Chun Rental fee paid 78 117
SEBELEZER [EENE kA
For the transactions constitute connected transactions ARBRBRAEREHTRUZERSE
under GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected REEXZME w2 ES52R
Transactions” under “Report of the Directors”. EIETZ[BAEXRS ]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

General information of subsidiaries

42. HBATZHE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of

which are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2016

are as follows:

Place and date of
incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid

(a) MHEBARZ—REH

RABRZZE—
ZEEWB LT
HBEWT:

NE=B=+—H
(2HEERAF)

registration Class of ordinary share/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
B/ BERTR
HEMRERMER BELER ERMER
HWELARER B FifsR MBI EMRFEE (3 R TERE
Direct Indirect
EE M
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE-Z-OF-B-RE-EZ-IF
% % % %
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises The PRC Registered RMB40,000,000 - 5 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
Company Limited* hospital management services
FREBAREXERAT" HE B AE%40,000,0007T RUBRREREERE
Edward Hospital Company Limited The PRC Registered RMB40,000,000 - = 55 55  Provision of general
hospital services
ERERERRARAF" HE B AE%40,000,0007 REGAMBRRY
Jiaxing Shuguang* The PRC Registered RMB15,000,000 - = 55 55  Provision of general
hospital services
EATEXPAEBEABRERLF FE B A E#15,000,0007 REGEMBRRS
Zhuhai Zhongkangan Enterprises The PRC Registered HK$3,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
Management Limited* hospital management services
HKERBEZECXERRRAA" HE B 3,000,000% 7T RUBRREREERE
Wanjia Group Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$6,484,000 - = 63.53 63.53  Investment holdings
EEREERERAR HERS g 6,484,000 7T REZR
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - - 63.53 63.53  Investment holdings
(“Huihao Hong Kong”)
B (BR)BEEBAERAR Y EE 1,000,000 7T REZR
([BHEHR])
Luxuriant Expand Global British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$100/US$50,000 - = 63.53 63.53  Investment holdings
Investments Limited
RMBRREERDT EWELHES BB 100% 7T/ REER
50,000% 7T
Timely Hero Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - = 63.53 63.53  Investment holdings
RREAEERA REBELES g 1%7,/50,000% 7T REZR
Nurture Fit Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$1/US$50,000 - = 63.53 63.53  Investment holdings
BREERAH REBELZHE @ 1%7,/50,000% 7T REZR
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao The PRC Registered RMB80,000,000 - - 47.65 63.53  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Pharmaceutical Co., Limited distribution business in the
(“Fuzhou Huihao") PRC
REARNTEFEEERAT HE B AK80,000,0007T RPEZENRBR D HEEB
(TEMZESF])
Putian Huihao Medicine Co., Limited The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 47.65 63.53  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
(“Putian Huihao") distribution business in the
PRC
FESREARERRAR HE B AR#10,000,0007 RAEZENHBER D HEH
((BmEH])
Fujian Huiming Medicine Co., Limited The PRC Registered RMB20,000,000 - - 47.65 63.53  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
(“Fujian Huiming") distribution business in the
PRC
FRARHBESRAR FE B AEK#20,000,0007 R ZEMM BT D HFH
([RREH])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT ZFE— 18
- continued
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MEBARZ—MEH-—&
- continued

Nominal value

Place and date of of issued and
incorporation/ fully paid
registration Class of ordinary share/ Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
301300 ERTR
HEMRERMER WMEEER EREEE
HELARER B PR ER HEMRFEE (2 13244 TERE
Direct Indirect
EE M
2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-RE-T-OFZB-RE-ZT-IF
% % % %
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain ~ The PRC Registered RMB55,856,350 - - 63.40 63.08  Pharmaceutical retail chain
Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai")* business in the PRC
BREEANSBEEEEREALF FE B AR #55,856,3507T RABEZENTEEHEEY
([EFmE]) "
Huihao Medicine (Quanzhou) Co., The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 47.65 63.53  Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
Limited distribution business in the
PRC
EHBRE (M ERAT FE =5 AER#10,000,0007 REEZENHBR D HEH
(TRMNEH])
Huihao Pharmaceutical (Nanping) The PRC Registered RMB12,500,000 - - 28.59 38.12  Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
Company Limited* distribution business in the
PRC
EFRE (BP)ERAF HE B AK™%12,500,0007T RAEZ BN RE S HEH
(H¥EH]) "
Shanghai Whole-Care Hospital The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
Management Co., Limited hospital management services
LEEEEREEARAR HE B ARK%10,000,0007 REBRREREERY
Fuzhou Jianhui Enterprise Management ~ The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
Consultancy Limited hospital management services
BNEECEEERAERAR HE B AK1,000,0007T REBRREREERY
Fuzhou Huikang Enterprise Management ~ The PRC Registered RMB1,000,000 - = 100 100 Provision of healthcare and
Consultancy Limited hospital management services
BNERCEEERAETRAR HE B AR1,000,0007T REBRRERERRY
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited  The PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 100 100 Provision of general
hospital services
HKENEBRERAR HE B AR%10,000,0007 REGAEERRS
# The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this ¢ AREPXEBzRXHEZEM
. . . . . . =ih /8 5 o
report, where indicated, is included for information Wil TERABEPXEEZIE
AN 7
only, and should not be regarded as the official English ARNER

names of such Chinese names

Z=EREEmARAT 2015/2016 #5 205



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EE = — NFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
- continued

(a)

(b)

General information of subsidiaries

- continued

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect
the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-

controlling interests:

42. HEB AT ZHR—&

(a) MEBARZ—HREH-&

ERFAIADTHBATDESR
RUFEEXEIEEREALE
E-EERRARAHLBHBARZ
ERBERERENRTR

(b) MAEXFERESIZFZRM

BT ZEN

TREIEBEANFERER ZA
EEZFZEMBLARZHT:

Place of Proportion of ownership
Incorporation interests and voting rights
and principal held by non-controlling Loss allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BERAILHER HARERRFRRER
KEATEH TEERME P RREZILA SEEFBRERZER RFARER
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-R"§ CZZ-1f IZB-RE C-E-1f ZB-R§ CEZ-IE
% % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET TERL TET THR
Wanjia Group The PRC 36.47% 36.47% (5,940) (281,376) 97,114 103,054
EREE hE
Add: Deemed disposal of
interest in subsidiary 63,409 -
MRELERKE D 2B
Less: Additional interest in a subsidiary (550) -
B -EREAR 2B MER
159,973 103,054

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B LB Z S — &
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) HBEEXFZRERZFZRM
that have material non-controlling interests BAFZHR—&
- continued
Wanjia Group BERKE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Current assets RBEE 609,526 618,170
Non-current assets IERBEE 37,272 37,170
Current liabilities mEAE 278,444 372,296
Non-current liabilities ERBEMR 77,830 =
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE AEMLER
the Company 222,744 273,781
Non-controlling interests RS 67,780 9,263
Revenue Uk &= 1,321,763 1,567,687
Loss for the year REEEE (13,462) (773,280)
Loss attributable to owners of RAGEEAEGER
the Company (13,802) (772,949)
Loss attributable to non-controlling FERERELER
interests 340 (331)
Loss for the year REEEE (13,462) (773,280)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42.
- continued
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

BT ZER— &

(b) MAEXFERESIZFZRM
BLARZHER-—&

- continued
Wanjia Group - continued EEEE-&
2016 2015
—E—-XE C"—ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Total comprehensive loss attributable to &R T #HEA A
owners of the Company ZHEEEHAZE (29,935) (771,526)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to  JE 35 iR 7 25 FE 45
non-controlling interests ZHEEBHAR (2,451) (331)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZHEEERE (32,386) (771,857)
Dividends paid to non-controlling ENFEERER2BRE
interests - =
Net cash generated from operating REFEFE
activities REeFHE 183,586 577
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEFE(FA)
investing activities HEFE 6,750 (18,890)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BMETERA (FT13)
financing activities BHEFHE (11,658) 16,452
Net cash increase/(decrease) in cash and BRE&RBELZEER
cash equivalents #m, CRd) FEE 178,678 (1,861)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AT ZHNE —#&
- continued
(c) Significant restrictions (c) EXEH
Cash and short-term deposits of RMB held in the PRC RABERFEEARB2REREMNF
are subject to local exchange control regulations. A Z S #h HhE B R I BT AR BR o
These local exchange control regulations provide for 2% 5 i HhIE B B R 5 71 P B
restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, other HERREHES (REBEERE
than through normal dividends. h) e
43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. RFEBRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEEEEHEARAUERAEE 2EE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BREFERSE WBBBLLERRERS
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the BRARRTREABR RBEFE R
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's SECERRRERFTTE -

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which AEBzEAZEROEERX (EREEE
includes bills payable, bank borrowings, promissory note HEE - RITEE RAZEBERITRRE
and convertible notes), cash and cash equivalents and equity B) BEeRBALLEBBEAREAQAAER
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising BEAERERE (EREFEBTRAR
issued share capital and reserves. @) o
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Gearing ratio

2%

RNEZA=+-BHLEEFE

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2016 and 2015 were as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &}

. REEREE &

BEARKE

R-IBE-—RER-_ZE-HE=A=+—

follows: HeEESBLERNT:
2016 2015
—ZE—XF —E-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Debt (note (a)) B (MiEE(a)) 223,985 218,295
Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELEEEE (249,712) (88,793)
Net (cash)/debt (BR&) B F58E (25,727) 129,502
Equity (note (b)) B A (B EE(b) ) 181,965 221,810
Gearing ratio EEAGBHE N/A 0.58

Notes: i & -

(@) Debt comprises bills payable, bank borrowings, convertible

notes and promissory note as detailed in notes 21, 22, 24 and

25 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
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e MBRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 ZE—ZE— ~FE=A=+—HILEFE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 44. TR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) EMITASE
Financial assets HGERE
2016 2015
—E-R¥ —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#ET FTET
Loans and receivables (including BEXRKEWRFIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BfEEERBELESEHER) 530,074 477,916
Derivative financial instruments PEARERAFEER
classified as fair value through BERIBR2ITEERMTIA
profit or loss 301 284
Financial liabilities HMBAR
Amortised cost 1# 88 AR A 480,110 470,684
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKEEERHERBE
policies
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial AEBEZEKEHZBEHERRE:
risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest mERER (BEEERRRFER
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's k) EERENAEE SRR &K
overall risk management programme focuses on the SECEREAREEARZEHER
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to *ﬁu?ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂﬁﬂm%'ﬁ%‘khﬁzﬁ
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's SEMBEMRREZEERINZERE
financial performance. The management manages BRE - EEEEERERZSERME
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate BERUEBERZAANEREREE
measures are implemented on a timely and effective Jitt ©
manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group’'s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is also exposed to market interest
rate risk mainly in relation to floating rate bank
borrowings (Note 22). The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of benchmark interest rate published
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management — continued

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest
rate risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2016 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$56,000 (2015: HK$408,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate has
increased during current year mainly due to

increase in variable-rate borrowings.

44 &M T H-&
(b) MERBREEEBERBE &

()
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GEMBRERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(ii) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is
arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;
and

o the carrying amount of the respective
pledged investment property and prepared
lease payments as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location mainly arised in the PRC. As
at 31 March 2016, the Group's concentration of
credit risk by customers is approximately 19.1%
of trade receivables due from the Group’s five
largest customers (2015: 29.9%).

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual’s trade debt and debt investments
at the end of each reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk - continued

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade and other receivables consist of a
large number of customers, spread across diverse

industries.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$20,878,000 (2015:
HK$64,983,000) respectively.

44. €@ T

A —i#

(b) MERREEZERRBR &

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME
For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ~"F=ZA=+—HILEFE
44, & TR -8
(b) HERBEEEARRBE—&

44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
RBREEMEE - &

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii)

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities as well as derivative and certain non-

derivative financial assets which are included

TRAEAAEIIFE M BEE
RITETRURE THRITEY
BEEZRBRSHOHR  S5F
ARBETFTRABEEEEAEZ

in the maturity analysis provided internally to RS UEBREBESE
the key management personnel for the purpose o MIEMTEMBEEMS -

of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative
financial assets, the tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial assets including interest that
will be earned on those assets except where the
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur
in a different period. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash

flows.

As at 31 March 2016

TRLERMBEEZ KRR
BREMFE (BREZSEE
% BREN 2 R B AR B AR
SEEENEMHBEEEZ
BERERN - BIFTETH
BEMS TRRRERAE
BWERNRZRT B 28
BEBEZRBRATRET

REFBANERTFERERE -

R-E—X"F=ZA=1+—H

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest  On demand/ 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate within 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
miEEy BEX/ L]
ERHE —-ER —Enf BELFE HEREME BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TRT TR THET THET THET
Non-derivative financial ~ FfiTEMBRAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EZ R EAEMFE - 271,111 - - 271,771 271,771
Bank borrowings RITRE 6.18% 55,030 - - 55,030 50,395
Amounts due to non- ERFERER
controlling interests - 662 - - 662 662
Convertible notes ARREE 12.96% - 90,792 - 90,792 83,178
Promissory note RAEE 3.0% - 80,000 - 80,000 74,104
327,463 170,792 - 498,255 480,110
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

44, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued
As at 31 March 2015

44 &M T H-&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

(i) RBDREeREETE-#
R-EBE-HAF=RA=1+—H

Weighted
average
effective Total
interest  On demand/ 2to Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate  within 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
g RER/ RER
BERF% —&R “ELF BBEE RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TR TR TR TR TER
Non-derivative financial FEHEAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B Z REME[HE - 269,939 - - 269,939 269,939
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.5% 126,975 - - 126,975 121,454
Amounts due to non- EFERERTE
controlling interests - 1,147 - - 1,147 1,147
Promissory note RAEE 3.0% - 80,000 - 80,000 72,712
Convertible note TERER 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 5,432
398,061 86,500 . 484,561 470,684
(c) Fair value measurements () 2FERE

The following note provides information about how the
Group determine fair values of various financial assets

and financial liabilities.

BT R AR B A S W A
SENBEERMGEEATES
EH o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. @M TR -8

(c) Fair value measurements - continued (o)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on recurring basis
The following table gives information about how the
fair value of these financial assets and liabilities are

determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and

AFEH R
BiEREELOFEHEZEEN
MBRERMBARZAFE

TREHEBANNEEZS UK E
ERVBREZAFEZEN (A
EBMs MELSEZRFAAZBAR

input used). #B)
Fair value  Valuation techniques and
Fair value as at hierarchy key inputs
RUTEMZAFE LFEER REFERIEGABE
31 March 31 March
2016 2015
“B-R"§ C—Z-5F¥
=ZA=+-H =ZA=t—-H
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#n TER
Financial assets
MBRE
Derivative financial instruments 301 284 Level 3 Binominal Model. Instruments Key
inputs share price, volatility, time
to maturity and conversion price.
TEMBIA £3% “HARE - TERABBEER

During the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015,
there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2, and there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets

and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. €T R —48&
(c) Fair value measurements — continued (c) AFEE—E

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and EERBHEBELULATFEHAEZSF
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair SEMBEERMBARZLOFHE
value on recurring basis

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors EERR RTRAFMLEIN A
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets RENBREANVBEEERMEE
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated BEZREEHEEAFEEE

financial statements approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 March 2016 As at 31 March 2015
R-E—RF=ZA=+—H WKZE—HF=A=+—H
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE NFEE BRTEE NEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET FTART FTART
Financial liabilities HMBEAR
Convertible notes R EE 83,178 81,129 5,432 6,102
Promissory note A EE 74,104 58,881 72,712 63,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. eMT R -8
(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEE—E
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHMBERARARIBZLOFE
consolidated statement of financial position iE
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREERYLTEIABIR D FEF
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial 2 REATEAHRZEES B
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to Bz emMI B2 oM
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable:
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016
R-IE—REFZA=+—HZATFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
H1® 2R 38 #t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THERT
Financial assets MBRE
Derivative financial fTESRMIA
instruments - - 301 301
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2015
R-ZE-RF=ZA=+-H2AVERE#
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERE $E2R $E3 ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET TAET TAET FTAET
Financial assets MBEE
Derivative financial fTEemMIA
instruments - - 284 284
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e MBHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value measurements - continued
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
31 March 2016
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2016
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as

follows:

44 &M T H-&
() AFEHE-E
EIRLTFEHBZHE

—E—AE=A=+—H
BE-T-AF=ZA=+-HBL#F
EREIRATEN R ESHSHM
T:

Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note

CIE: 128
AR Z

FR [ 48
HK$°000
TFET

As at 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HFMAE—H 284
Change in fair value recognised EREZHEIALATEEE

in profit or loss

17

As at 31 March 2016 RZE—AR"FE=HA=1+—H 301
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GEMBHmEME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE = — ANFE=A=+—HLEE

44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 44. &R T R —48&
(c) Fair value measurements - continued (c) AFEE—E
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements FEIMAFEIIBEZHIE—&
- continued
31 March 2015 —E-AF=ZA=+—H
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_Z-—RAF=A=1+—HIHF
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as EREIRATFEFTEZEHEEN
follows: T
Redemption
option
embedded in
convertible
note
AR EE
W2
FE [l 1
HK$'000
FET
As at 1 April 2014 R-Z2—NENA—H 384
Change in fair value recognised in EREERAAFEEZE
profit or loss (100)

As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RE=RA=+—H 284
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GEMBHREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 EZE =S — ANEFE=A=+—HLEE

45. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 45. BETIRGEEMBEE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The consolidated financial statements were approved and REMBREN=F-R"FRNATRA
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 16 June RESEHERRET®-
2016.

Z=EREEEARAT 2015/2016 5 223
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Financial Summary

MGHE
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ZE—-RE —“E-HF —E-WNFE —E-= —E-C-F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET FTET THET TET
RESULTS i
Revenue g 1,574,607 1,780,309 2,243,159 2,020,589 1,835,776
(Loss)/profit before taxation — BR®iAT (5 1E) /&5 A (41,154)  (771,395) 66,670 72,683 84,407
Taxation B\ (3,942) (10,789) (29,216) (22,141) (26,378)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (FR),EF (45,096)  (782,184) 37,454 50,542 58,029
(Loss)/profit attributable to LT AL
(E#8) &7
— Owners of the Company —ARATHEEA (43,372)  (505,581) 21,913 42,740 49,666
— Non-controlling interests —ERER (1,724)  (276,603) 15,541 7,802 8,363
(45,096)  (782,184) 37,454 50,542 58,029
As at 31 March
R=AR=+—8H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-RE ZE-HF ZE-NFE ZE2-= —E--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TRET TET TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HERAR
Total assets BEE 877,870 874,991 1,638,040 1,578,537 1,491,156
Total liabilities HEfE (483,524)  (493,493)  (487,617)  (592,498)  (551,112)
394,346 381,498 1,150,423 986,039 940,044
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